
NCCFD AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING (A1) 
July 20, 2023 

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

640 Coyote Street 
Nevada City, CA 95959 
(530) 265-4431
FAX 265-4438

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Keith Grueneberg, President 
Patricia Nelson, Vice President 
Barry Dorland 
Tom Carrington 
Spencer Garrett 
Jon Hall 
Marianne Slade-Troutman 

STAFF 
Jason Robitaille, Fire Chief 
Pat Sullivan, Division Chief 

Patrick Mason, Fire Marshal 
Kevin Greene, Fleet and Facilities Supervisor 

Nicole Long, Administrative Services Manager 
Kaitlin Purvis, Finance Administrative Assistant 

Tricia Bush, Administrative Services Assistant 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING – AMENDED AGENDA 
THURSDAY, JULY 20, 2023– 7:00 PM 

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED FIRE DISTRICT, 11329 MCCOURTNEY ROAD, GRASS VALLEY, CA 95949 

Pursuant to Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order pertaining to the convening of public meetings in response to 
the COVID-19 pandemic, the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District will hold its regularly scheduled meeting. This 
meeting is open to in-person attendance. To remain in compliance with the state public health guidance, face coverings 
are strongly recommended to be worn by all individuals while indoors. The Public’s and Employee’s health and well-
being are the top priority for the Board of Directors of the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District, and you are urged 
to take all the appropriate health safety precautions. 

Tricia Bush, Board Secretary 
(530) 265-4431 

triciabush@nccfire.com 

The Board of Directors welcomes you to its meetings and your participation is encouraged and appreciated.  Any 
Member of the Audience desiring to address the Board on a matter appearing on the agenda, before or during 
consideration of the item, may do so after receiving recognition from the presiding officer.  In order for all interested 
parties to have an opportunity to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. For further 
rules on public comment and other matters, please see the last page of this agenda. 

NOTICE 
If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as 
required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Federal Rules and Regulations adopted in 
the implementation thereof.  Persons seeking an alternative format should contact the Clerk of the Board for further 
information.   

All items posted on the agenda, including under correspondence, may be acted upon by the Board of 
Directors.  However, matters under committee reports and department manager's reports may be briefly addressed by 
the Board or Staff but no action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. (GC 
54954.2) 

The Board of Directors may hold a Closed Session as the agenda schedule permits. 

www.nccfire.com 
nccfire@nccfire.com 

mailto:triciabush@nccfire.com
http://www.nccfire.com/
mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com


NCCFD AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING (A2) 
JULY 20, 2023 

STANDING ORDERS: 
7:00 p.m. Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
Corrections and/or deletions to the agenda 

*PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Per CA Government Code 54954.3 

This is the time for any member of the public to address the Board on any item not on this Agenda that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the NCCFD Board.  Please wait for recognition from the presiding officer. The Board generally cannot act on or 
discuss an item not on the agenda.  However, the Board may “briefly respond” to comments or questions from the members of the 
public.  Please see the rules for public comment at the end of this agenda. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
These items are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion by the Board of Directors. There will be no separate 
discussion of these items.  If discussion is desired, any board or staff member or interested party may request that an item be 
removed from the Consent Calendar to be considered separately.  

1. Acceptance of Special Meeting Minutes – June 7, 2023
2. Acceptance of Minutes – June 15, 2023
3. Acceptance of Special Meeting Minutes – June 29, 2023
4. Fund Balances, Check History Report and Credit Card History Report

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
STANDING COMMITTEES 

FINANCE/BUDGET: HALL, Slade-Troutman  
PERSONNEL: Carrington, Garrett, Nelson 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 
BOARD POLICY AND PROCEDURES: Grueneberg 
CONSOLIDATION: Grueneberg, Dorland, Carrington 

LOCAL AGENCY ASSIGNMENTS 
NEVADA COUNTY FIRE AGENCY (JPA): Garrett, Robitaille 

NEW BUSINESS 

5. Discussion and Possible Action, Resolution R23- 17, Establishing Designation of Applicants
Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies. Admin Svcs. Long

6. Discussion and Possible Action, Resolution R23-18, Authorized Benefit Resolution for the
Miscellaneous Non-Represented Employees. Admin Svcs. Long/ Chief Robitaille

7. Discussion and Possible Action, Memorandum of Understanding Between County of Nevada,
Rough & Ready Fire Protection District, Penn Valley Fire Protection District and Nevada County
Consolidated Fire District.  Chief Robitaille

8. Discussion and Possible Action, Letter Drafted to the County of Nevada Requesting Gap Funding
for the Staffing of Rough & Ready Fire. Chief Robitaille

9. Discussion and Possible Action, Resolution R23-19, Updating the Authorized Personnel for Fiscal
Year 23/24.  Chief Robitaille

10. Discussion and Possible Action, Proposal for Legal Services for Nevada County Consolidated
Fire District.  Chief Robitaille

11. Discussion and Possible Action, Resolution R23-20, 2023/2024 Fiscal Year District Wage and
Compensation Schedule. Chief Robitaille



NCCFD AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING (A3) 
JULY 20, 2023 

12. Discussion and Possible Action, Resolution 23-21, Enter into An Agreement with Golden State
Fire Apparatus for One (1) Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 4X4 Enforcer 1500 GPM Pumper Engine.
Chief Robitaille/ Fleet & Facilities Supervisor Greene

13. Discussion and Possible Action, Staff Report to Surplus, Accept Offer from Nevada City Police
and Authorize Fire Chief Robitaille or Designee to Sign the Necessary Documents for the Sale of
Two Staff Vehicles.    Chief Robitaille/ Fleet & Facilities Supervisor Greene

14. Discussion and Possible Action, Purchase a Water Tender from Ophir Hill Fire Protection
District.  Chief Robitaille/ Fleet & Facilities Supervisor Greene

15. Discussion and Possible Action, Agreement with Suburban Propane for Commercial Propane
Gas Sales.   Chief Robitaille

16. Discussion and Possible Action, SDRMA Official Election Ballot for 2023 Board of Directors
Election.   President Grueneberg

17. Correspondence:
  17A. Thank you letter from Cheyanne Barker (Penn Valley Rodeo Queen).
  17B. Thank you letter from Twin Rivers Elementary School District.  

CHIEFS MONTHLY REPORT 

*BOARD DISCUSSION

CLOSED SESSION
Public Comment on Closed Session Items:  
Per CA Government Code 54954.3  
While members of the public are not allowed in Closed Sessions, they do have a right to comment on the 
Closed Session item before the Board goes into Closed Session. And, if the Board will be taking action on 
the item out of Closed Session, then the public also has a right to comment during consideration of the 
action to be taken. Any member of the public who wishes to comment may do so after receiving 
recognition from the Chairman.  

18. Public Employee Performance Evaluation
Pursuant to CA Government Code Section 54957 

Title: Board Secretary 

19. Conference with Labor Negotiators
Pursuant to CA Government Code Section 54957.6 

Employee Organizations and Unrepresented Employees: 
Agency Representatives: Chief Robitaille, President Grueneberg, Director Dorland 

• Local Firefighters Union 3800 representing the Non-Management Safety Employees

ADJOURNMENT 



NCCFD AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING (A4) 
JULY 20, 2023 

Board Meeting Schedule 
All Regular Board Meetings will take place on the third Thursday of the month.  

Copies 
Copies of the agenda documents relative to an agenda item may be obtained at the Administrative Office, 
640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA 95959, at a cost of $1.00 dollar per page.  

Board Meeting Notices 
This Regular Meeting Agenda was posted 72 hours in advance of the meeting at the following locations: 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District: Administration Office, 640 Coyote Street, Nevada City; Station 
86, 12337 Banner Lava Cap Rd, Nevada City; Station 88, 14400 Golden Star, Grass Valley; Station 89, 11833 
Tammy Way, Grass Valley; and on our website address at http://www.nccfire.com.  Our e-mail address is 
nccfire@nccfire.com.  

Rules Applying to Public Comments (as provided by CA Government Code Section 54954.) 
A. Members of the public wishing to address the Board upon any subject within the jurisdiction of

the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District may do so upon receiving recognition from the presiding 
officer at the appropriate time.  You may address the Board on any agenda item prior to Board Action.  If 
you wish to address the Board on an item not on the agenda, you may do so during the General Public 
Comment period.  Understand that no action may be taken on an item not on the agenda. 

— Where necessary for the orderly operation of the meeting, the presiding officer may limit 
public comment during the public comment period or public hearing to no more than five 

minutes per individual. 

B. After receiving recognition, please stand and state your name, as all meetings are being taped.
Note that stating your name is a voluntary act and is not required. 

C. Members of the public may submit written comments on any matter that is listed on the agenda
or for general public comment. You may submit written comments on any matter by U.S. Mail addressed 
to 640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA 95959 or by e-mail to triciabush@nccfire.com. For comments to be 
read at the meeting and entered into the minutes they must be received no later than 8:00 a.m. on the 
morning of the noticed meeting. 

D. All documents to be presented to the Board of Directors shall be given to the Secretary of the
Board for distribution (original and seven copies) prior to the Call of Order of meeting. 

E. Complaints against any individual District employee cannot be brought up in open meeting
directly.  The District will only consider such a complaint if submitted in writing. 

mailto:nccfire@nccn.net
mailto:triciabush@nccfire.com


 

NCCFD MINUTES – SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

June 7, 2023  

640 Coyote Street  
Nevada City, CA 95959  
(530) 265-4431 
FAX 265-4438 

DRAFT 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES June 7, 2023 
Special Meeting held at 

11329 McCourtney Road, Grass Valley, CA 95949 

www.nccfire.com 
nccfire@nccfire.com 

NCCFD DIRECTORS 
Present:  Grueneberg (President), Hall, Nelson, Slade-Troutman, Garrett 

STAFF: 
Present: Fire Chief Robitaille 

STANDING ORDERS: 
President Grueneberg called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M. and took roll call, noting Director Dorland 
and Director Carrington were absent. President Grueneberg led in the pledge of allegiance.  

*PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Per CA Government Code 54954.3 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discussion and Possible Action, Agreement with Outlaw Foods.
Chief Robitaille advised NCCFD has entered into a lease agreement with Outlaw Foods (a Fire Support Unit)
to utilize NCCFD Station 91 as a premise to store Emergency Equipment trailers. The lease begins May 1,
2023 and continues on a month-to-month basis until one of the parties terminates the tenancy. Director
Nelson motioned to approve the agreement with Outlaw Foods.  Director Garrett seconded. MOTION
passed unanimously by a roll call vote with Director Dorland and Director Carrington absent.

2. Discussion and Possible Action, Resolution R23-10, Authorizing the Fire Suppression Benefit
Assessment, District 2004-1, Located in the Boundaries of the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District,
to be Placed on the Nevada County Secured Tax Rolls & Requesting the County of Nevada to Levy &
Collect this District-Wide Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment for FY 2023/2024.

Administrative Services Long stated this resolution must be adopted to place the benefit assessment on the 
tax bills with the county that includes the amount and if any increases are approved. The district can 
increase by no more than 3% annually. Director Garrett motioned to adopt Resolution R23-10, Authorizing 
the Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment, District 2004-1, Located within the Boundaries of the Nevada 
County Consolidated Fire District, to be placed on the Nevada County Secured Tax Rolls, Requesting the 
County of Nevada to Levy and Collect the District-Wide Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment with a 3% 
increase. Director Hall seconded. MOTION passed unanimously following a roll call vote with Director 
Dorland and Director Carrington absent. 

1-1

http://www.nccfire.com/
mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com


NCCFD MINUTES – SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

June 7, 2023  

BOARD DISCUSSION 

There was a brief discussion regarding the Rough & Ready Fire and Penn Valley Fire consolidation 
with no significant updates. President Grueneberg advised there is a meeting tomorrow, June 8th 
with the county.  

ADJOURNMENT 

President Grueneberg adjourned the meeting at 2:13 P.M. 

Attest: Approved by: 

Tricia Bush Keith Grueneberg 
Board Secretary President of the Board

1-2



 

NCCFD MINUTES – Regular BOARD MEETING 

June 15, 2023  

640 Coyote Street  
Nevada City, CA 95959  
(530) 265-4431 
FAX 265-4438 

DRAFT 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES June 15, 2021 
Regular Meeting held at 

11329 McCourtney Road, Grass Valley, CA 95949 

www.nccfire.com 
nccfire@nccfire.com 

NCCFD DIRECTORS 
Present:  Grueneberg (President), Carrington, Garrett, Hall 

STAFF: 
Present: Fire Chief Robitaille, Division Chief Sullivan, Fire Marshal Mason, Administrative Services Long 

STANDING ORDERS: 
President Grueneberg called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and took roll call, noting that Director Dorland, 
Director Slade-Troutman and Director Nelson were absent. FPO II Tellam led in the pledge of allegiance. 

*PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Per CA Government Code 54954.3 

No report. 

CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Acceptance of Minutes – May 18, 2023

2. Fund Balances, Check History Report, and Credit Card History Report

Director Hall motioned to accept the consent calendar. Director Garrett seconded. MOTION passed 
unanimously with Director Dorland, Director Slade-Troutman and Director Nelson absent.  

COMMITTEE REPORTS
STANDING COMMITTEES 

FINANCE/BUDGET: Hall, Slade-Troutman 
PERSONNEL: Carrington, Garrett, Nelson 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 
BOARD POLICY AND PROCEDURES: Grueneberg 
CONSOLIDATION: Carrington, Dorland, Grueneberg 

LOCAL AGENCY ASSIGNMENTS 

NEVADA COUNTY FIRE AGENCY (JPA): Garrett, Robitaille 

Finance – No report. 

Personnel – No report. 

Board Policy & Procedures – No report 

Consolidation – Discussion with Rough & Ready, Penn Valley and NCC have been taking place. 

JPA – Chief Robitaille stated he attended his first meeting, and they are working on the budget as well as 
replacing long time secretary/bookkeeper Jessica.  

2-1

http://www.nccfire.com/
mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com


NCCFD MINUTES – Regular BOARD MEETING 

June 15, 2023  

NEW BUSINESS 

4. Discussion and possible action, Resolution 23-11, Transfer $125,000.00 from Fund 722 to Capital
Reserve Fund 758 for Equipment and Vehicles.

Chief Robitaille reported that this is an annual transfer of funds from our operating fund to our capital
improvement fund. Staff recommends putting $125,000 of the net proceeds from the 2022/2023 fire
season for the wear and tear of apparatus and equipment into fund 758 for future equipment and
vehicles.  Director motioned to adopt Resolution 23-11, Transfer $125,000.00 from Fund 722 to Fund 758.
Director seconded. MOTION passed unanimously following a roll call vote, with Director Dorland, Director
Slade-Troutman and Director Nelson absent.

5. Discussion and possible action, Resolution 23-12, Authorized Personnel Resolution for Fiscal Year
2022/2023.

Chief Robitaille reported that each year we bring an authorization to the board that identifies the
positions to be held during the fiscal year; this resolution reflects the staffing for the 2023/2024 fiscal
year. Director motioned to adopt Resolution 23-12, Authorized Personnel Resolution for Fiscal Year
2023/2024. Director seconded. MOTION passed unanimously following a roll call vote, with Director
Dorland, Director Slade-Trotman and Director Nelson absent.

6. Discussion and possible action, Resolution R23-13, Authorizing the Special Tax for Fire Suppression,
Protection & Emergency Medical Response Services within the Boundaries of Nevada County
Consolidated Fire District & Requesting the County of Nevada to Levy & Collect District-Wide Special Tax
for Fire Suppression, Protection & Emergency Medical Response Services for FY 2023/2024 Tax Rolls.

Administrative Services Manager Long reported that the initial resolution states that the special tax can
increase by the Western States CPI or 3%, whichever is less. The current Western States CPI is 8%, Staff
recommends increasing the special tax to 3%, increasing revenue by $30,000. Director motioned to adopt
Resolution 23-13, Authorizing the Special Tax for Fire Suppression, Protection & Emergency Medical
Response Services within the Boundaries of Nevada County Consolidated Fire District & Requesting the
County of Nevada to Levy & Collect District-Wide Special Tax for Fire Suppression, Protection &
Emergency Medical Response Services for FY 2023/2024 Tax Rolls. Director seconded. MOTION passed
unanimously following a roll call vote, with Director Dorland, Director Slade-Troutman and Director
Nelson absent.

7. Discussion and possible action, Resolution R23-14, Establishing the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year
2023/2024.

Administrative Services Manager Long reported that California mandates an appropriation limit be set
every fiscal year. He reviewed the calculation of appropriations limits and stated that the district is well
within its limit. Director motioned to adopt Resolution 23-14, Establishing the Appropriations Limit for
Fiscal Year 2023/2024. Director seconded. MOTION passed unanimously following a roll call vote, with
Director Dorland, Director Slade-Troutman, and Director Nelson absent.

8. Discussion and possible action, Resolution R23-15, Adopting the Preliminary Budget for the Fiscal Year
2023/2024.

Fire Chief Robitaille reviewed the budget, with the highlights being captured below.

Throughout the budget, there are three (3) columns, the FY 23/24 preliminary budget, 22/23 amended
budget, and the actual expenses and revenue percentages as of May 31, 2021.

Page 8-3: preliminary budget highlights.

Page 8-4: fund 722 budget recap.

Page 8-5: secured taxes, 3% increase has been placed in the budget; the district will receive values in

2-2



NCCFD MINUTES – Regular BOARD MEETING 

June 15, 2023  

August but do not receive actual numbers until October. 

• Account 4110: 3% increase as approved.
• Account 4150: 3% increase as approved.

Page 11-6: this preliminary budget has no projected increases in wages and benefits.
• Account 5731: the cap is budgeted for all employees.
• Account 5751: increase in Workers’ Comp experience modification 22%

Page 8-7: Account 6114, no interns 

Page 11-9: Account 7051, decrease is due to the use of the indexes from the Department of Energy to 
project costs.  

Director motioned to adopt Resolution 23-15, Adopting the Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
in the amount of. Director seconded. MOTION passed unanimously following a roll call vote, with Director 
Dorland, Director Slade-Troutman and Director Nelson absent. 

9. Discussion and possible action, Resolution 23-16, Transfer $10,775.00 from Fund 758 to Fund 722.

Administrative Services Long reported that payment for the architectural services for station 86 was
incorrectly paid for out of 722. This resolution is for the County to transfer the funds back to our operating
fund. Director motioned to adopt Resolution 23-16, Transferring $10,775.00 from Fund 758 to Fund 722.
Director seconded. MOTION passed unanimously following a roll call vote, with Director Dorland, Director
Slade-Troutman, and Director Nelson absent.

CHIEF’S MONTHLY REPORT 

*BOARD DISCUSSION

10. Closed Session.

The board entered closed session at 7:42.

The board came out of closed session at 8:02.

Director Garrett motioned to approve the MOU pending district legal review, authorizing staff to make the
payroll changes for the pay period beginning June 25, 2023, for represented and unrepresented employees. 

ADJOURNMENT 

President Grueneberg adjourned the meeting at 8:11 pm 

Attest: Approved by: 

Nicole Long Keith Grueneberg 
Acting Board Secretary President of the Board

2-3



 

NCCFD MINUTES – SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

June 29, 2023  

640 Coyote Street  
Nevada City, CA 95959  
(530) 265-4431 
FAX 265-4438 

DRAFT 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES June 29, 2023 
Special Meeting held at 

11329 McCourtney Road, Grass Valley, CA 95949 

www.nccfire.com 
nccfire@nccfire.com 

NCCFD DIRECTORS 
Present:  Grueneberg (President), Hall, Carrington, Slade-Troutman, Nelson 

STAFF: 
Present: Fire Chief Robitaille, Administrative Services Long, Division Chief Pat Sullivan, Fire Marshal 

Mason, Fleet & Facilities Supervisor Greene and Battalion Chief Sunde. 

STANDING ORDERS: 
President Grueneberg called the meeting to order at 1:30 P.M. and took roll call, noting Director Dorland 
and Director Garrett were absent. Battalion Chief Sunde led in the pledge of allegiance.  

*PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Per CA Government Code 54954.3 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discussion and Possible Action, Agreement between Nevada County Consolidated Fire District, Penn
Valley Fire District and Rough & Ready Fire Protection District for the Purpose of Providing Reciprocal
Fire Protection and Related Services Under this Joint Operations Agreement.
Chief Robitaille advised this agreement is due to a reorganization of three districts. It is the initial step that
allows the joint staffing of Station #59. After some discussion on terms, Director Nelson motioned to
approve the amended Agreement between Nevada County Consolidated Fire, Penn Valley Fire District and
Rough & Ready Fire Protection District for the Purpose of Providing Reciprocal Fire Protection and Related
Services. Director Carrington seconded. MOTION passed unanimously by a roll call vote with Director
Dorland and Director Garrett absent.

2. Discussion and Possible Action, Joint Letter with Penn Valley Fire to request Gap Funding from the
County of Nevada.

Chief Robitaille stated he attended an ad hoc meeting at the County of Nevada today. There will be a joint 
workshop with Penn Valley Fire in which funding needs to be formally requested along with the budget. 
Theis must be completed by the next Nevada County Board of Supervisors meeting (August 8, 2023). The 
Chief advised this letter will be prepared at the next NCC Fire board meeting (July 20, 2023).  

BOARD DISCUSSION 

There was a brief discussion on next steps of the three fire district boards. 

3-1

http://www.nccfire.com/
mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com


NCCFD MINUTES – SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

June 29, 2023  

ADJOURNMENT 

President Grueneberg adjourned the meeting at 1:53 P.M. 

Attest: Approved by: 

Tricia Bush Keith Grueneberg 
Board Secretary President of the Board

3-2



Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
Fund Recap & Cash Balances
June 2023

722 723 733 734 758 Total
Operating Contingency AB1600 Special Tax Capital

Beginning Cash1 3,097,111 1,268,736 152,504         15,171           411,265 4,944,787 

Revenues 412,997         - 12,352 51,913           2,849                480,111         

Expenditures (690,297)        (125,000)        - - (2,826)               (818,123)        

Other Inc/Expense (114,835)        - - 250,000 135,165         

Other Activity2 (4,936)            - 104 - (4,832)            

Ending Cash1 2,700,040 1,143,736 164,960         67,084           661,288 4,737,108 

1 Includes Well Fargo
2 Reconciling items, prior period adjustments

Fund

4-1



 1:32 PM
 07/12/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 June 2023

Jun 23 Jul '22 - Jun 23 Budget % of Budget

Revenues

4000 · Taxes & Assessments

4010 · Current Secured 183,103 3,661,688 3,661,951 100%

4020 · Current Unsecured 440 58,763 57,942 101%

4030 · Prior Unsecured 50 1,444 2,296 63%

4040 · Supplemental Secured 11,840 149,679 100,000 150%

4050 · Supplemental Unsecured 105 4,968 8,598 58%

4060 · Supplemental Prior Unsecured 13 517 388 133%

4110 · Special Assessment 110,730 2,232,734 2,214,078 101%

4150 · Special Tax of 2012 17,797 1,001,388 2%

4151 · Special Tax 2012 (transfer in) 997,000 100%

4230 · State Homeowners 3,711 24,737 24,888 99%

4240 · State Public Safety Prop 172 44,856 533,120 448,358 119%

4290 · Other 0 721 100%

Total 4000 · Taxes & Assessments 354,848 7,683,168 7,519,887 102%

4500 · Reimbursements

4510 · Strike Team 25,289 683,606 75,000 311%

4522 · Strike Team Cost Offset (17,995) (450,223) 100%

4540 · Vehicle Repair 6,380 5,000 128%

4550 · Cost Recovery 4,565 29,622 20,000 148%

4690 · Other Reimbursements 16,018 41,689 23,480 178%

Total 4500 · Reimbursements 27,877 311,074 123,480 252%

4800 · Other Revenue

4810 · Inspections & Permits 864 7,941 7,500 106%

4812 · Plan Reviews 2,016 12,397 12,000 103%

4820 · Interest & Finance Charges 25,993 58,481 32,000 183%

4830 · Rentals 550 3,640 3,240 112%

4840 · Other Current Services 849 3,836 3,000 128%

Total 4800 · Other Revenue 30,272 86,295 57,740 149%

Total Revenues 412,997 8,080,537 7,701,107 105%

Fiscal Year Complete: 100%. Payroll Complete: 100%. 4-2



 1:32 PM
 07/12/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 June 2023

Jun 23 Jul '22 - Jun 23 Budget % of Budget

Expense

5000 · Wages & Benefits

5100 · Wages

5111 · Chief / Div. Chief (2) 35,489 353,878 338,478 105%

5113 · Battalion Chief (3) 40,558 357,634 350,039 102%

5114 · Fire Marshal / DFM (2) 27,596 151,454 152,289 99%

5121 · Captains (9) 101,234 898,577 875,804 103%

5122 · Lieutenants (6) 48,768 468,348 467,539 100%

5123 · Firefighter (12) 72,289 639,738 652,987 98%

5131 · Supplemental / Seasonal FF 22,049 154,135 157,277 98%

5132 · PCF / Reserve FF 4,020 4,800 84%

5141 · Clerical (2.5) 20,559 185,241 203,691 91%

5145 · Fire Mechanic (1.5) 17,036 149,831 149,089 100%

5151 · Overtime 70,900 572,821 501,048 114%

5153 · Additional Overtime Staffing 2,171 42,575 18,541 230%

5155 · EPSL Overtime 38,110

5161 · Strike Team 132 314,436

5165 · Strike Team Backfill 1,146 106,049

5167 · Strike Team Revenue Offset (17,738) (443,788)

5171 · Holiday Stipend 8,174 84,657 80,199 106%

5173 · Vacation / CTO Buy Back 1,519 101,631 115,648 88%

5185 · Directors 750 3,750 4,500 83%

Total 5100 · Wages 452,632 4,183,097 4,071,929 103%

5500 · Payroll Taxes

5511 · Medicare Employer Tax 6,024 60,986 61,355 99%

5512 · Soc Security Employer Tax 91 858 887 97%

5521 · SUI Employer Tax 374 6,067 5,637 108%

5526 · Strike Team Revenue Offset (257) (6,435) 100%

Total 5500 · Payroll Taxes 6,232 61,476 67,879 91%

5700 · Benefits

5711 · Pension 69,852 1,133,291 1,258,282 90%

5731 · Health Insurance 59,827 639,980 772,464 83%

5735 · Life Insurance 464 11,212 14,400 78%

5751 · Workers Comp Insurance 204,884 228,707 90%

Total 5700 · Benefits 130,143 1,989,367 2,273,853 87%

Total 5000 · Wages & Benefits 589,007 6,233,940 6,413,661 97%

Fiscal Year Complete: 100%. Payroll Complete: 100%. 4-3



 1:32 PM
 07/12/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 June 2023

Jun 23 Jul '22 - Jun 23 Budget % of Budget

6000 · Personnel Related

6010 · Clothing / PPE

6011 · Uniforms 2,833 30,252 35,080 86%

6021 · Personal Protective Equip 6,606 51,703 51,500 100%

6031 · Safety & PPE (per MOU) 616 35,498 38,000 93%

Total 6010 · Clothing / PPE 10,055 117,453 124,580 94%

6100 · Food / Meals

6111 · Meals - Administration 105 2,639 1,700 155%

6113 · Meals - Fire 97 627 1,000 63%

6114 · Meals - Interns 450 500 90%

Total 6100 · Food / Meals 202 3,716 3,200 116%

6200 · Training / Fitness

6211 · Wellness Program 1,161 30,250 31,660 96%

6213 · Fitness Program 28 6,014 5,910 102%

6221 · Tuition - Safety Personnel 3,617 21,167 30,500 69%

6232 · Travel Expense 1,400 7,623 10,000 76%

6241 · Training Materials 2,500 2,500 100%

6246 · Public Safety Training Center 1,000

6261 · Licenses & Certificates 941 2,839 2,500 114%

6271 · Training - Administration 741 7,406 8,500 87%

Total 6200 · Training / Fitness 7,888 77,799 92,570 84%

Total 6000 · Personnel Related 18,145 198,968 220,350 90%

6500 · Facility & Equipment Related

6510 · Communications

6511 · Telephones 1,598 18,760 19,260 97%

6521 · Mobile Phones 774 7,057 15,500 46%

Total 6510 · Communications 2,372 25,817 34,760 74%

6550 · Station
6551 · Supplies & Services - Stations 1,297 16,966 24,760 69%

Total 6550 · Station 1,297 16,966 24,760 69%

6610 · Insurance
6611 · Liability & Umbrella 82,446 85,000 97%

Total 6610 · Insurance 82,446 85,000 97%

6650 · Maintenance
6681 · Facility Maint & Improvements 13,575 144,035 189,000 76%

Total 6650 · Maintenance 13,575 144,035 189,000 76%

6700 · Medical Supplies
6716 · EMS Supplies 232 15,043 18,500 81%

Total 6700 · Medical Supplies 232 15,043 18,500 81%

6750 · Apparatus Equipment

6751 · Hose 2,259 8,946 22,000 41%

6756 · Ladders 1,553

6761 · Suppression Equip/Small Tools 95 5,318 7,500 71%

6766 · Power Tools & Equipment 7,078 7,902 90%

Fiscal Year Complete: 100%. Payroll Complete: 100%. 4-4



 1:32 PM
 07/12/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 June 2023

Jun 23 Jul '22 - Jun 23 Budget % of Budget

6771 · Pump Testing 4,620 4,337 107%

6776 · Mobile Communications 332 8,258 7,685 107%

6781 · Technical Rescue Equip 3,295 11,676 13,000 90%

6786 · SCBA Repair & Maintenace 5,361 10,500 51%

6796 · Drone 1,000 1,412 71%

6798 · Utility Terrain Vehicle 74 1,415 1,500 94%

Total 6750 · Apparatus Equipment 6,055 53,672 77,389 69%

6800 · Utilities

6811 · Alarm 1,513 1,500 101%

6821 · Electricity / Gas 5,241 68,466 65,000 105%

6831 · Propane 88 16,975 13,924 122%

6841 · Trash 249 3,324 3,600 92%

6851 · Water / Sewer 284 8,532 11,487 74%

Total 6800 · Utilities 5,862 98,810 95,511 103%

6900 · Capital Expenditures
6941 · Admin Office Equipm & Computers 8,514 28,612 27,125 105%

Total 6900 · Capital Expenditures 8,514 28,612 27,125 105%

Total 6500 · Facility & Equipment Related 37,907 465,401 552,045 84%

7000 · Vehicle Related

7001 · Insurance 19,716 10,085 195%

7010 · Maintenance

7011 · Accessories 758 15,738

7016 · Batteries 980

7021 · Body 2,276 12,362

7026 · Brakes 534 6,214

7031 · Drive Train 672 48,435

7036 · Pumps 4,237

7041 · Tires 9,151 24,693

7046 · Tools & Shop Related 555 11,391

7048 · All Categories for Budget 111,000

7049 · Outside Agency Vehicle Maint 394 154

Total 7010 · Maintenance 14,340 124,204 111,000 112%

7050 · Fuel
7051 · Fuel 6,457 84,573 93,447 91%

Total 7050 · Fuel 6,457 84,573 93,447 91%

Total 7000 · Vehicle Related 20,797 228,493 214,532 107%

7500 · General & Admin Related

7501 · Office Expense

7502 · Administration 352 5,944 4,500 132%

7506 · Board 200 1,000 20%

7508 · Computer & Software Expense 9,880 76,539 86,233 89%

7509 · Copier Expense 195 1,139 1,200 95%

7511 · Memberships 1,000 15,974 16,190 99%

7516 · Mileage Reimbursements 44 100 44%

Fiscal Year Complete: 100%. Payroll Complete: 100%. 4-5



 1:32 PM
 07/12/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 June 2023

Jun 23 Jul '22 - Jun 23 Budget % of Budget

7521 · Postage & Delivery 339 1,008 1,100 92%

7501 · Office Expense - Other 0 15 100%

Total 7501 · Office Expense 11,766 100,863 110,323 91%

7550 · Professional Services

7551 · Accounting 14,427 15,000 96%

7556 · Computer & IT Support 810 11,813 14,980 79%

7561 · Consultants 921 10,990 10,000 110%

7563 · Hiring Expense 2,522 17,425 11,380 153%

7566 · Legal Expense 3,216 33,712 46,675 72%

7571 · Medical Director 6,600 6,600 100%

7576 · Other 2,594 2,594 100%

Total 7550 · Professional Services 10,063 97,561 104,635 93%

7590 · Publications

7591 · Legal Notices 381 600 64%

7596 · Marketing / Advertising 500

Total 7590 · Publications 381 1,100 35%

7600 · Special District

7611 · Elections 32,262 30,000 108%

7621 · LAFCo 5,687 6,663 85%

7631 · Nevada County Fees 82,050 89,228 92%

Total 7600 · Special District 119,999 125,891 95%

7650 · Prevention

7651 · Code Purchases 1,893 1,800 105%

7653 · Investigation Supplies 471 3,118 4,300 73%

7657 · Inspection Supplies 100 100 1,500 7%

7661 · Prof Svcs / Plan Checks 109 109 2,500 4%

7663 · Public Education Supplies 1,798 3,100 58%

7665 · Subscriptions / Memberships 464 1,596 1,400 114%

7667 · Training 968 5,992 6,000 100%

7669 · Other Prevention / Law Enforce 500 2,927 1,500 195%

Total 7650 · Prevention 2,612 17,533 22,100 79%

7800 · JPA

7831 · Dispatch Charges 135,925 130,000 105%

7841 · Dues / Administration 12,862 12,862 100%

Total 7800 · JPA 148,787 142,862 104%

Total 7500 · General & Admin Related 24,441 485,124 506,911 96%

8500 · Strike Team Non Labor Expenses 14,055 100%

8510 · Reimbursables & Other
8519 · Other Expense 133

Total 8510 · Reimbursables & Other 133 100%

Total Expense 690,297 7,626,114 7,907,499 96%

Fund Over/<Under> (277,300) 454,423 (206,392)

Other Income

8800 · Transfers In

Fiscal Year Complete: 100%. Payroll Complete: 100%. 4-6



 1:32 PM
 07/12/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 June 2023

Jun 23 Jul '22 - Jun 23 Budget % of Budget

8823 · Transfer from 723 53,000

8858 · Transfer From 758 10,775 10,775

Total 8800 · Transfers In 10,775 63,775

9001 · Grant Revenue

9001.08 · RFC 7GF21089 7,876

9001 · Grant Revenue - Other 25,824

Total 9001 · Grant Revenue 33,700

Total Other Income 10,775 97,475

Other Expense

8700 · Transfers Out
8758 · Transfer to 758 125,000 125,000

Total 8700 · Transfers Out 125,000 125,000

9101 · Grant Expense

9101.01 · AFG EMW-2019-FG-03486 Radio 16,954

9101.02 · AFG EMU-2020-FG-02126 Covid (193)

9101.09 · CA Fire Foundation Comm Veg Red 610 10,706

Total 9101 · Grant Expense 610 27,467

Total Other Expense 125,610 152,467

Net Other (114,835) (54,992)
Net Fund Activity (392,135) 399,431 (206,392)

Fiscal Year Complete: 100%. Payroll Complete: 100%. 4-7



 1:34 PM
 07/12/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 AB 1600 Mitigation Fund 733

 June 2023

Jun 23 Jul '22 - Jun 23 Budget % of Budget

Revenues

4000 · Taxes & Assessments
4160 · AB 1600 Mitigation Fees 11,434 115,761 100,412 115%

Total 4000 · Taxes & Assessments 11,434 115,761 100,412 115%

4800 · Other Revenue
4820 · Interest & Finance Charges 918 2,414 1,200 201%

Total 4800 · Other Revenue 918 2,414 1,200 201%

Total Revenues 12,352 118,175 101,612 116%

Expense

6500 · Facility & Equipment Related

6900 · Capital Expenditures
6921 · Apparatus & Equipment 51,803 51,803

Total 6900 · Capital Expenditures 51,803 51,803

Total 6500 · Facility & Equipment Related 51,803 51,803

7500 · General & Admin Related

7550 · Professional Services
7561 · Consultants 23,000

Total 7550 · Professional Services 23,000

Total 7500 · General & Admin Related 23,000

Total Expense 51,803 74,803

Fund Over/<Under> 12,352 66,372 26,809
Net Fund Activity 12,352 66,372 26,809

4-8



 1:35 PM
 07/12/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Special Tax Fund 734

 June 2023

Jun 23 Jul '22 - Jun 23 Budget % of Budget

Revenues

4000 · Taxes & Assessments
4150 · Special Tax of 2012 50,546 1,010,745 1,010,219 100%

Total 4000 · Taxes & Assessments 50,546 1,010,745 1,010,219 100%

4800 · Other Revenue
4820 · Interest & Finance Charges 1,367 3,476 1,500 232%

Total 4800 · Other Revenue 1,367 3,476 1,500 232%

Total Revenues 51,913 1,014,221 1,011,719 100%

Expense

7500 · General & Admin Related

7600 · Special District
7631 · Nevada County Fees 8,177 10,331 79%

Total 7600 · Special District 8,177 10,331 79%

Total 7500 · General & Admin Related 8,177 10,331 79%

Total Expense 8,177 10,331 79%

Fund Over/<Under> 51,913 1,006,044 1,001,388 100%

Other Expense

8700 · Transfers Out
8722 · Transfer to 722 997,000

Total 8700 · Transfers Out 997,000

Total Other Expense 997,000

Net Other (997,000)
Net Fund Activity 51,913 9,044 1,001,388

4-9



 1:36 PM
 07/12/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Capital Fund 758

 June 2023

Jun 23 Jul '22 - Jun 23 Budget % of Budget

Revenues

4800 · Other Revenue

4820 · Interest & Finance Charges 2,849 12,064 100%

4850 · Sale Surplus Equipment 60,000

Total 4800 · Other Revenue 2,849 12,064 60,000 20%

Total Revenues 2,849 12,064 60,000 20%

Expense

6500 · Facility & Equipment Related

6510 · Communications
6511 · Telephones 190

Total 6510 · Communications 190

6650 · Maintenance
6681 · Facility Maint & Improvements 127,163

Total 6650 · Maintenance 127,163

6900 · Capital Expenditures

6911 · Stations 8,000

6921 · Apparatus & Equipment 301,385 151,249 199%

6931 · Vehicles 2,826 49,426 65,000 76%

Total 6900 · Capital Expenditures 2,826 350,811 224,249 156%

Total 6500 · Facility & Equipment Related 2,826 478,164 224,249 213%

7500 · General & Admin Related

7550 · Professional Services
7561 · Consultants 6,000

Total 7550 · Professional Services 6,000

Total 7500 · General & Admin Related 6,000

Total Expense 2,826 478,164 230,249 208%

Fund Over/<Under> 23 (466,100) (170,249)

Other Income

8800 · Transfers In

8822 · Transfer from 722 125,000 125,000

8823 · Transfer from 723 125,000 125,000

Total 8800 · Transfers In 250,000 250,000

Total Other Income 250,000 250,000

Other Expense

8700 · Transfers Out
8722 · Transfer to 722 10,775 10,775

Total 8700 · Transfers Out 10,775 10,775

Total Other Expense 10,775 10,775

Net Other 239,225 239,225
Net Fund Activity 239,248 (226,875) (170,249)

4-10



 1:15 PM
 07/12/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Check History Report

 June 2023
Date Num Name Paid Amount

Fund 722

06/01/2023 259952 AFLAC 763.76$           

06/01/2023 259895 BLUE SHIELD OF CALIFORNIA 34,922.65$      

06/01/2023 V973245 FDAC Employee Benefits Authority 1,323.65$        

06/01/2023 V973229 KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN 17,306.15$      

06/01/2023 V973170 SPECIAL DIST RISK MGMT AUTH. 4,441.98$        

06/01/2023 259975 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 899.00$           

06/01/2023 259886 CalPERS 457 Plan (Def. Comp) 1,362.50$        

06/01/2023 V973180 NCCFD - EFTPS (Fed & State Taxes) 24,146.67$      

06/01/2023 V973190 NEVADA COUNTY PROF FF ASSN 1,085.00$        

06/01/2023 V973197 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 5,917.77$        

06/01/2023 912442 CalPERS (Retirement) 34,677.28$      

06/02/2023 GJE706 Net Pay Pay Period Ending 5/27/23 102,854.25$     

06/05/2023 260000 HUMAN NATURE 2,258.66$        

06/05/2023 259999 UPS 17.57$             

06/05/2023 260009 B&C ACE HOME & GARDEN CENTER 112.83$           

06/05/2023 V973355 Big Brand Tire & Service 2,865.66$        

06/05/2023 V973293 BUCKMASTER OFFICE SOLUTIONS 125.12$           

06/05/2023 260042 GOLDEN STATE EMERGENCY VEHICLE 68.52$             

06/05/2023 V973348 Justin Mendoza 931.26$           

06/05/2023 260023 LIFE ASSIST INC. 111.20$           

06/05/2023 V973301 PURCHASE POWER 255.94$           

06/05/2023 260030 RESCUE RESPONSE GEAR 307.15$           

06/05/2023 V973307 RIVERVIEW INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS 1,140.10$        

06/05/2023 260046 SAC ICE, LLC 263.87$           

06/05/2023 260011 SIERRA-SACRAMENTO VALLEY EMS 1,000.00$        

06/05/2023 260039 SPAR TREE FORESTRY 2,500.00$        

06/05/2023 260045 YATES GEAR INC. 107.61$           

06/05/2023 260010 B&C ACE HOME & GARDEN CENTER 24.53$             

06/05/2023 260031 RESCUE RESPONSE GEAR 2,855.42$        

06/12/2023 260232 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF NEV. CO. 444.95$           

06/12/2023 260230 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF NEV. CO. 82.70$             

06/12/2023 260231 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF NEV. CO. 82.70$             

06/12/2023 260265 Auburn Tire 2,359.53$        

06/12/2023 260235 B&C ACE HOME & GARDEN CENTER 52.06$             

06/12/2023 V973927 BANNER COMMUNICATIONS 269.28$           

06/12/2023 260268 Du-Mor Fire Systems, Inc. 1,100.00$        

06/12/2023 260302 Fire Station Furniture 5,366.20$        

06/12/2023 V973945 GRASS VALLEY SIGN CO 1,398.31$        

06/12/2023 260247 HBE RENTALS 19.09$             

06/12/2023 V973912 HUNT & SONS, INC. 3,771.33$        

06/12/2023 260240 L.N. CURTIS & SONS 2,553.86$        

06/12/2023 V973904 MISSION LINEN SUPPLY, INC. 126.48$           

06/12/2023 260249 NETWORK DESIGN ASSOCIATES 405.00$           

06/12/2023 260288 PORAC 27.00$             

4-114-11



 1:15 PM
 07/12/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Check History Report

 June 2023
Date Num Name Paid Amount

06/12/2023 260289 PORAC - LEGAL DEFENSE FUND 42.00$             

06/12/2023 V973929 Reliable Auto Glass Company 711.17$           

06/12/2023 V973909 RIVERVIEW INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS 263.67$           

06/12/2023 V973930 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES, INC. 979.13$           

06/12/2023 V973899 TELLAM, ROBERT 500.00$           

06/12/2023 260274 WITMER ASSOCIATES, INC. dba 2,204.94$        

06/12/2023 260241 L.N. CURTIS & SONS 1,454.89$        

06/15/2023 260307 HSA BANK, DIV. OF WEBSTER BANK 12,434.39$      

06/15/2023 260308 CalPERS 457 Plan (Def. Comp) 1,428.81$        

06/15/2023 V973969 NCCFD - EFTPS (Fed & State Taxes) 26,635.05$      

06/15/2023 V973986 NEVADA COUNTY PROF FF ASSN 1,085.00$        

06/15/2023 V973992 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 5,871.13$        

06/15/2023 912475 CalPERS (Retirement) 38,486.56$      

06/16/2023 GJE711 Net Pay Pay Period Ending 6/10/23 113,391.78$     

06/19/2023 260498 AT&T CALNET 3 472.00$           

06/19/2023 260497 CalCARD (US BANK) 18,366.02$      

06/19/2023 260495 NID 31.23$             

06/19/2023 260493 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF NEV. CO. 204.40$           

06/19/2023 260496 NID 61.13$             

06/19/2023 260494 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF NEV. CO. 44.65$             

06/19/2023 V974181 A TO Z SUPPLY 14.82$             

06/19/2023 260556 AUBURN FORD 96.89$             

06/19/2023 V974230 Big Brand Tire & Service 3,925.35$        

06/19/2023 260572 GOLDEN STATE EMERGENCY VEHICLE 119.50$           

06/19/2023 V974234 Isaiah Saenz 81.00$             

06/19/2023 260513 NEVADA COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH 1,650.00$        

06/19/2023 260585 RIEBES AUTO PARTS 1,023.67$        

06/19/2023 V974192 RIVERVIEW INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS 16.13$             

06/19/2023 260592 Sean Gruber 53.00$             

06/19/2023 260589 THE UPS STORE #5417/TAJI INC. 182.00$           

06/19/2023 260573 GOLDEN STATE EMERGENCY VEHICLE 395.44$           

06/26/2023 260815 B&C ACE HOME & GARDEN CENTER 111.86$           

06/26/2023 V974349 BUCKMASTER OFFICE SOLUTIONS 4,193.13$        

06/26/2023 260819 HBE RENTALS 20.42$             

06/26/2023 V974355 HILLS FLAT LUMBER COMPANY 56.50$             

06/26/2023 V974356 MISSION LINEN SUPPLY, INC. 126.48$           

06/26/2023 260821 NETWORK DESIGN ASSOCIATES 405.00$           

06/26/2023 V974375 Regional Government Services 2,593.60$        

06/26/2023 V974374 Work Health Solutions 1,560.00$        

06/26/2023 260822 NETWORK DESIGN ASSOCIATES 183.00$           

06/29/2023 260879 PURCHASE POWER 83.15$             

06/29/2023 260880 NID 104.95$           

06/29/2023 260882 CalPERS (Retirement) 28.80$             

06/29/2023 260881 NID 87.15$             

06/29/2023 260887 AT&T CALNET 3 27.19$             

4-124-12



 1:15 PM
 07/12/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Check History Report

 June 2023
Date Num Name Paid Amount

06/29/2023 260883 CalPERS (Retirement) 14.40$             

06/29/2023 260884 CalPERS (Retirement) 528.00$           

06/29/2023 260885 CalPERS (Retirement) 86.40$             

06/29/2023 260886 CalPERS (Retirement) 547.20$           

06/29/2023 260888 CalCARD (US BANK) 12,374.63$      

06/29/2023 V974410 AIR EXCHANGE 1,801.95$        

06/29/2023 V974493 ArchiveSocial 7,188.00$        

06/29/2023 260899 B&C ACE HOME & GARDEN CENTER 21.68$             

06/29/2023 V974403 BENTON, BROCK 100.00$           

06/29/2023 V974454 BEST BEST & KRIEGER 3,216.20$        

06/29/2023 V974430 BURTON'S FIRE APPARATUS 394.04$           

06/29/2023 V974467 CORDICO PSYCHOLOGICAL CORP 1,000.00$        

06/29/2023 260957 CRAIG JOHNSON PLUMBING 225.00$           

06/29/2023 260909 NETWORK DESIGN ASSOCIATES 1,620.00$        

06/29/2023 V974516 Regional Government Services 921.00$           

06/29/2023 V974420 RIVERVIEW INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS 85.76$             

06/29/2023 V974462 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES, INC. 1,432.88$        

06/29/2023 V974477 SOLON FIRE CONTROL 95.00$             

06/29/2023 V974395 TELLAM, ROBERT 250.00$           

06/29/2023 260958 CRAIG JOHNSON PLUMBING 225.00$           

06/29/2023 260910 NETWORK DESIGN ASSOCIATES 360.00$           

06/29/2023 260911 NETWORK DESIGN ASSOCIATES 350.00$           

06/30/2023 260889 HSA BANK, DIV. OF WEBSTER BANK -$           

06/30/2023 260890 CalPERS 457 Plan (Def. Comp) 1,211.85$        

06/30/2023 260946 WILDLAND FF FOUNDATION 154.00$           

06/30/2023 V974397 NCCFD - EFTPS (Fed & State Taxes) 25,460.65$      

06/30/2023 V974408 NEVADA COUNTY PROF FF ASSN 1,120.00$        

06/30/2023 V974416 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 5,824.69$        

06/30/2023 912519 CalPERS (Retirement) 37,854.40$      

06/30/2023 GJE713 Net Pay Pay Period Ending 6/24/23 112,054.06$     
Total Fund 722: 721,028.36$     

Fund 758-2

06/12/2023 V973927 BANNER COMMUNICATIONS 324.14$           

06/12/2023 260269 Top This Outfitters 1,573.25$        

06/19/2023 260497 CalCARD (US BANK) 594.70$           

06/29/2023 260888 CalCARD (US BANK) 334.15$           

Total Fund 758-2: 2,826.24$        

4-134-13



 10:57 AM
 07/12/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Credit Card History Report

 June 2023
Date Num Name  Paid Amount 

Fund 722

06/27/2023 06.27.23PRE SIERRA-SACRAMENTO VALLEY EMS 86.00$              

06/06/2023 COOMBE AMAZON: St. 89 Supplies 245.63$            

06/06/2023 COOMBE Fireline Shields 172.50$            

06/27/2023 COOMBE WITMER ASSOCIATES, INC. dba 219.38$            

06/06/2023 DAVISON AMAZON: Wellness Budget 361.04$            

06/06/2023 DAVISON Raley's Supermarket 77.78$              

06/06/2023 DAVISON SPD MARKET 67.89$              

06/01/2023 FIN MGR STREAMLINE 200.00$            

06/01/2023 FIN MGR Shred It 93.75$              

06/05/2023 FIN MGR AT&T Long Distance 40.19$              

06/09/2023 FIN MGR Cloudflare 5.00$          

06/11/2023 FIN MGR COMCAST 406.78$            

06/13/2023 FIN MGR PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO. 5,241.47$         

06/13/2023 FIN MGR AT&T (Carol Stream) 43.84$              

06/17/2023 FIN MGR COMCAST 136.33$            

06/20/2023 FIN MGR MICROSOFT OFFICE 1,262.00$         

06/23/2023 FIN MGR SMARTER BROADBAND 40.00$              

06/24/2023 FIN MGR OPTIMUM (SUDDENLINK) 26.32$              

06/24/2023 FIN MGR OPTIMUM (SUDDENLINK) 159.45$            

06/26/2023 FIN MGR COMCAST 146.86$            

06/26/2023 FIN MGR VERIZON WIRELESS 3,485.15$         

06/06/2023 GREENE CORNWELL ANDERSON TOOL 26.76$              

06/06/2023 GREENE SNAP-ON INDUSTRIAL 23.23$              

06/06/2023 GREENE DISH NETWORK 98.81$              

06/06/2023 GREENE DAVID CLARK COMPANY INC. 45.00$              

06/06/2023 GREENE MAC TOOLS 65.10$              

06/06/2023 GREENE CORNWELL ANDERSON TOOL 235.92$            

06/06/2023 GREENE KIMBALL MIDWEST 300.62$            

06/06/2023 JACKSON AMAZON: Vehicle Mtc.- Decals 24.67$              

06/06/2023 JACKSON AMAZON: Vehicle Mtc.- Decals 61.28$              

06/06/2023 JACKSON AMAZON: Vehicle Mtc.- Decals 64.44$              

06/06/2023 JACKSON AMAZON: Vehicle Mtc.- Decals 32.67$              

06/06/2023 JACKSON AMAZON: Vehicle Mtc.- Decals 43.28$              

06/06/2023 JOHNSEN Bare Bones Workwear 657.51$            

06/06/2023 LONG Renaissance Long Beach Hotel 508.48$            

06/06/2023 LONG Southwest Airlines 113.98$            

06/06/2023 LONG Southwest Airlines 118.98$            

06/06/2023 LONG Maya's Mexican Food 105.15$            

06/06/2023 LONG IDville 84.98$              

06/06/2023 LONG Calendly 96.00$              

06/06/2023 LONG AMAZON: Admin Supplies 21.06$              

06/06/2023 LONG AMAZON: Admin Supplies 59.11$              

06/06/2023 LONG AMAZON: Admin Supplies 44.92$              

4-144-14



 10:57 AM
 07/12/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Credit Card History Report

 June 2023
Date Num Name  Paid Amount 

06/06/2023 LONG AMAZON: St.84 Supplies 221.33$            

06/27/2023 LONG Ram Mounts 185.05$            

06/27/2023 LONG STAPLES 91.11$              

06/27/2023 LONG AMAZON: Computer/Software- Admin 332.48$            

06/27/2023 LONG Calendly 96.00$              

06/27/2023 LONG AMAZON: Vehicle Mtc.- Accessories 57.62$              

06/06/2023 MARGHERITA THE UPS STORE #5417/TAJI INC. 150.59$            

06/06/2023 MARGHERITA ASE 140.00$            

06/06/2023 MARGHERITA Bare Bones Workwear 233.28$            

06/06/2023 MASON Bluebeam 109.00$            

06/06/2023 MASON Fire Investigator Supply 127.16$            

06/06/2023 MASON AMAZON: Prevention Investigation Supplies 61.26$              

06/06/2023 MASON AMAZON: Prevention Investigation Supplies 282.97$            

06/06/2023 MASON Tactical Gear.com 377.66$            

06/06/2023 MASON Tactical Gear.com 165.54$            

06/06/2023 MASON AMAZON: Prevention Investigation Supplies 100.33$            

06/06/2023 MASON Tactical Gear.com 72.38$              

06/06/2023 MCELHANNON Santa Clara County EMS Agency 112.00$            

06/06/2023 MCELHANNON STAPLES 72.68$              

06/06/2023 MCELHANNON SIERRA-SACRAMENTO VALLEY EMS 86.00$              

06/06/2023 MCELHANNON STAPLES 141.04$            

06/27/2023 MCELHANNON ResQTech/Paul Cole 750.00$            

06/27/2023 MENET KNIGHT'S PAINT, INC. 48.41$              

06/27/2023 MENET Walmart 37.82$              

06/27/2023 MENET Costco 67.63$              

06/27/2023 MENET Target 41.95$              

06/06/2023 NUNNINK Yuba Community College District 150.00$            

06/06/2023 NUNNINK AMAZON: St.84 Supplies 27.40$              

06/06/2023 NUNNINK AMAZON: St.84 Supplies 92.60$              

06/27/2023 NUNNINK Washington Hotel- Restaurant 73.85$              

06/27/2023 ROBITAILLE Chevron 70.95$              

06/27/2023 SERNA SIERRA-SACRAMENTO VALLEY EMS 86.00$              

06/27/2023 SERNA SIERRA-SACRAMENTO VALLEY EMS 86.00$              

06/27/2023 SERNA Doordash 33.98$              

06/27/2023 SERNA STAPLES 57.03$              

06/27/2023 SULLIVAN AFI/Badgesource 1,542.00$         

06/06/2023 SUNDE El Dorado Hills Fire Dept. 200.00$            

06/06/2023 SUNDE Fire Nuggets 1,500.00$         

06/06/2023 SUNDE Northridge of Nevada City 63.19$              

06/27/2023 SUNDE Bare Bones Workwear 271.30$            

06/06/2023 TELLAM REED'S LOCKSMITHING 15.19$              

06/06/2023 TELLAM El Dorado Hills Fire Dept. (paid via PayPal) 395.00$            

06/06/2023 TELLAM El Dorado Hills Fire Dept. (paid via PayPal) 395.00$            

06/06/2023 TELLAM El Dorado Hills Fire Dept. (paid via PayPal) 395.00$            

06/06/2023 TELLAM El Dorado Hills Fire Dept. (paid via PayPal) 300.00$            

4-154-15



 10:57 AM
 07/12/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Credit Card History Report

 June 2023
Date Num Name  Paid Amount 

06/27/2023 TELLAM CCAI 100.00$            

06/27/2023 TELLAM IAAI 103.00$            

06/27/2023 TELLAM Country Inn & Suites 469.02$            

06/06/2023 TREVETHICK AMAZON: St.86 Facilty Mtc. 13.96$              

06/27/2023 TREVETHICK AMAZON: St.88 Supplies 40.82$              

06/27/2023 TREVETHICK AMAZON: St.88 Supplies (Refund) (40.82)$             

06/06/2023 WEATHERS TRACTOR SUPPLY CO 325.49$            

06/06/2023 WEATHERS SPD MARKET 48.65$              

06/06/2023 WEATHERS AMAZON: St.86 Supplies 17.08$              

06/06/2023 WILSON AMAZON: St.89 Fitness, Medical Supplies 148.65$            

26,490.94$        
TOTAL Fund 722: 26,490.94$        

Fund 758-2

06/06/2023 MASON TacticalGear.com 358.78$            

06/27/2023 MASON TRACTOR SUPPLY CO 334.15$            

692.93$            

TOTAL Fund 758-2: 692.93$            

4-164-16



DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION FOR NON-STATE AGENCIES

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE OF THE 
(Governing Body) (Name of Applicant) 

THAT , OR 
(Title of Authorized Agent) 

, OR 
(Title of Authorized Agent) 

(Title of Authorized Agent) 

is hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of the  , 
 (Name of Applicant) 

a public entity established under the laws of the State of California, this application 
and to file it with the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services for the 
purpose of obtaining federal financial assistance for any existing or future grant 
program, including, but not limited to any of the following: 

- Federally declared Disaster (DR), Fire Mitigation Assistance Grant (FMAG),
California State Only Disaster (CDAA), Immediate Services Program (ISP), Hazard
Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Building Resilient Infrastructure and
Communities (BRIC), Legislative Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program (LPDM), under

- Public Law 93-288 as amended by the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and
Emergency Assistance Act of 1988, and/or state financial assistance under the
California Disaster Assistance Act.

- Flood Mitigation Assistance Program (FMA), under Section 1366 of the National
Flood Insurance Act of 1968.

- National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program (NEHRP) 42 U.S. Code 7704 (b)
((2) (A) (ix) and 42 U.S. Code 7704 (b) (2) (B) National Earthquake Hazards
Reduction Program, and also The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2018, Div. F,
Department of Homeland Security Appropriations Act, 2018, Pub. L. No. 115-141

- California Early Earthquake Warning (CEEW) under CA Gov Code – Gov, Title 2,
Div. 1, Chapter 7, Article 5, Sections 8587.8, 8587.11, 8587.12

That the , a public entity established under the 
(Name of Applicant) 

laws of the State of California, hereby authorizes its agent(s) to provide to the 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services for all matters pertaining to such state 
disaster assistance the assurances and agreements required.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION
NON-STATE AGENCIES
OES-FPD-130 (Rev. 10-2022) 

RECOVERY DIRECTORATE 
FINANCIAL PROCESSING DIVISION

Cal OES ID No: _____________

Rev. 10-2022 Page 1 of 4
5-1



Please check the appropriate box below 

This is a universal resolution and is effective for all open and future 

disasters/grants declared up to three (3) years following the date of approval. 

This is a disaster/grant specific resolution and is effective for only  

disaster/grant number(s):      

Passed and approved this  __day of , 20 

(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 

(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 

(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 

CERTIFICATION 

I, , duly appointed and  of 
(Name)       (Title) 

, do hereby certify that the above is a true and 
(Name of Applicant) 

correct copy of a resolution passed and approved by the 
 (Governing Body) 

of the on the day of , 20   . 
 (Name of Applicant) 

(Signature) (Title) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION
NON-STATE AGENCIES
OES-FPD-130 (Rev. 10-2022) 

RECOVERY DIRECTORATE 
FINANCIAL PROCESSING DIVISION

Rev. 10-2022 Page 2 of 4
5-2



Cal OES Form 130 Instructions 

A Designation of Applicant’s Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies is required of all 
Applicants to be eligible to receive funding. A new resolution must be submitted if a 
previously submitted resolution is older than three (3) years from the last date of 
approval, is invalid, or has not been submitted. 

When completing the Cal OES Form 130, Applicants should fill in the blanks on pages 1 
and 2. The blanks are to be filled in as follows: 

Resolution Section: 

Governing Body: This is the group responsible for appointing and approving the 
Authorized Agents. 

Examples include: Board of Directors, City Council, Board of Supervisors, Board of 
Education, etc. 

Name of Applicant: The public entity established under the laws of the 
State of California.  

Examples include: School District, Office of Education, City, County or Non-profit 
agency that has applied for the grant, such as: City of San Diego, Sacramento 
County, Burbank Unified School District, Napa County Office of Education, 
University Southern California. 

Authorized Agent: These are the individuals that are authorized by the Governing Body 
to engage with the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the California 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services regarding grants for which they have applied. 
There are two ways of completing this section: 

1. Titles Only: The titles of the Authorized Agents should be entered here, not their
names. This allows the document to remain valid if an Authorized Agent leaves
the position and is replaced by another individual. If “Titles Only” is the chosen
method, this document must be accompanied by either a cover letter naming
the Authorized Agents by name and title, or the Cal OES AA Names
document. The supporting document can be completed by any authorized
person within the Agency (e.g., administrative assistant, the Authorized Agent,
secretary to the Director). It does not require the Governing Body’s signature.

2. Names and Titles: If the Governing Body so chooses, the names and titles of the
Authorized Agents would be listed. A new Cal OES Form 130 will be required if
any of the Authorized Agents are replaced, leave the position listed on the
document, or their title changes.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION
NON-STATE AGENCIES
OES-FPD-130 (Rev. 10-2022) 

RECOVERY DIRECTORATE 
FINANCIAL PROCESSING DIVISION

Rev. 10-2022 Page 3 of 4
5-3



Checking Universal or Disaster-Specific Box: A Universal resolution is effective for all 
past disasters and for those declared up to three (3) years following the date of 
approval. Upon expiration it is no longer effective for new disasters, but it remains 
in effect for disasters declared prior to expiration. It remains effective until the 
disaster goes through closeout unless it is superseded by a newer resolution. 

Governing Body Representative: These are the names and titles of the approving 
Board Members. 

Examples include: Chairman of the Board, Director, Superintendent, etc. The 
names and titles cannot be one of the designated Authorized Agents. A 
minimum of three (3) approving board members must be listed. If less than three 
are present, meeting minutes must be attached in order to verify a quorum was 
met. 

Certification Section: 

Name and Title: This is the individual in attendance who recorded the creation and 
approval of this resolution. 

Examples include: City Clerk, Secretary to the Board of Directors, County Clerk, 
etc. This person cannot be one of the designated Authorized Agents or 
Approving Board Member. If a person holds two positions (such as City Manager 
and Secretary to the Board) and the City Manager is to be listed as an 
Authorized Agent, then that person could sign the document as Secretary to 
the Board (not City Manager) to eliminate “Self-Certification.” 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION
NON-STATE AGENCIES
OES-FPD-130 (Rev. 10-2022) 

RECOVERY DIRECTORATE 
FINANCIAL PROCESSING DIVISION

Rev. 10-2022 Page 4 of 4
5-4



Resolution 23-18 
July 20, 2023 

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

Resolution 23-18 
AUTHORIZED BENEFIT RESOLUTION FOR MISCELLANEOUS NON-REPRESENTED EMPLOYEES 

WHEREAS, the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Board of Directors has the authority under 
Section 13861 of the Health and Safety Code to establish compensation for safety management, safety non-
management, and miscellaneous non-represented employees; and 

WHEREAS, this resolution replaces Resolution 19-28, adopted September 19, 2019. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Board of Directors, 
that the salaries and benefits for miscellaneous non-represented employees are hereby established as follows: 

1. COMPENSATION
The Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Board of Directors shall establish wage ranges or flat step wages
for miscellaneous non-represented classifications. The wage ranges for miscellaneous non-represented
employees in classifications that are not represented by a recognized employee organization are in the District
wage schedule adopted and amended from time to time by Board action when necessary.

1.1 LONGEVITY PREMIUM 
.50% increase at the completion of 5 years 
1.00% increase at the completion of 10 years 
1.00% increase at the completion of 15 years 
1.00% increase at the completion of 20 years 
1.00% increase at the completion of 25 years 

There is a maximum longevity premium cap of 4.50%. Years of service for the computation of credited time will 
include years of service in full time appointment with the following fire service agencies: 

• Watt Park
• Alta Oaks
• 49er

• Gold Flat
• Bullion
• NCCFD

1.2 EDUCATION INCENTIVE 
NCCFD will budget $300.00 each fiscal year per employee for education incentives. The Fire Chief will have 
review authority to see that a course of study is of value to NCCFD. The money will be paid after proof of 
successful completion of approved classes has been furnished. This is reimbursement for tuition and books only. 
Unused balances in a fiscal year cannot be carried forward to the following year.  
All EMPLOYEES covered by this resolution shall be granted a 1.25% increase above the base pay for an AA/AS 
degree from a nationally or regionally accredited institution -OR- All EMPLOYEES covered by this resolution shall 
be granted a 2.75% increase above the base pay for a BA/BS degree from a nationally or regionally accredited 
institution -OR- All EMPLOYEES covered by this resolution shall be granted a 4.25% increase above the base pay 
for a Master’s degree from a nationally or regionally accredited institution. The pay increase will be granted by 
NCCFD upon receipt of a diploma or official transcripts. 

6-1



Resolution 23-18 
July 20, 2023 

2. Wage increases: Increases indicated in this Agreement will become effective as follows: pay increases effective
date during the first week of the payroll period will be effective for entire pay period, otherwise the increase will
be effective the start of the following pay period.  This would include, but not limited to the adopted
administration wage schedule, increases, longevity, promotions & education incentives.

3. LEAVES OF ABSENCE

3.1 Vacation Leave Accrual 
Employees shall be entitled to earn vacation according to the following schedule: 

Full-Time Miscellaneous Employees: 

YEARS OF SERVICE HOURS PER PAY PERIOD HOURS PER YEAR CAP 
0-5 3.38 88 120 

6-10 4.92 128 160 
11+ 6.462 168 200 

Part-time miscellaneous employees will accrue at pro-rated amounts depending on work schedule. 

2.1.2 Vacation Buy Back 
Employees have the option of requesting pay in lieu of time off for a maximum of 150 hours per fiscal year. 
Advance notice must be given to the payroll department and the requested amounts, if earned, will be paid by 
separate check on the next available pay date. 

3.2 Compensatory Time Off/Executive Time Off 

3.2.1 Management Miscellaneous Employees: 
In lieu of overtime compensation, management miscellaneous employees are entitled to Executive Time Off in 
addition to vacation time.  

Executive Time Off shall be accrued as follows: 
Management Miscellaneous Employees shall receive eighty (80) hours per fiscal year, non-cumulative 
Executive Leave in recognition of after-hours district commitments. 

3.2.1.1 Executive Time Off Leave Buy Back 
Management Miscellaneous Employees may choose to be reimbursed by NCCFD for up to thirty-two (32) 
hours of Executive Time Off per fiscal year. 

3.2.2 Compensatory Time Off 
In lieu of overtime pay Full-Time Employees, may be credited with compensatory time off (CTO) at the rate of 
one and one-half hours of CTO for each hour worked in excess of the maximum established work period; the 
maximum accrual balance will be 24 hours for each Employee. Compensatory time is in addition to maximum 
accrual of other types of personal leave. Except in the event of separation from employment, compensatory 
time must be taken and will not be cashed out. 

6-2



Resolution 23-18 
July 20, 2023 

3.3 Holiday Leave 
Designated Holidays are as follows: 

New Years’ Day Martin Luther King’s Birthday 
President’s Day Memorial Day 
Independence Day Labor Day 
Columbus Day Veteran’s Day 
Thanksgiving Day Day after Thanksgiving 
Christmas Day Floating Holiday 

3.4 Sick Leave 
Full-time miscellaneous employees will accrue 120 hours of sick leave per year. Sick leave will be accrued at a 
rate of 4.616 hours per pay period. 

Part-time miscellaneous employees will accrue at pro-rated amounts depending on work schedule. 

4. PENSION BENEFITS

NCCFD shall continue as a member of the Public Employee’s Retirement System (PERS) and includes the
following benefits.

Participation in the retirement plan shall be consistent with the requirements of the California Public Employees’
Pension Reform Act of 2013 as it is currently enacted and as it is amended in the future, and its implementing
regulations, referred to hereinafter as “PEPRA”. To the extent PEPRA conflicts with any provision of this
Resolution, PEPRA will govern.

a. New Members – For the purposes of this section “New Member” is defined by PEPRA to be any of the following
(statutory reference is to the California Government Code 7522.02):

(1) Any individual who becomes a member of any public retirement system for the first time on or after January
1, 2013, and who was not a member of any other public retirement system prior to that date.

(2) An individual who becomes a member of a public retirement system for the first time on or after January 1,
2013, and who was a member of another public retirement system, but who was not subject to reciprocity
under subdivision (c) of Section 7522.02 of the California Government Code.

(3) Any individual who was an active member in a retirement system and who, after a break in service of more
than six months, returned to active membership in that system with a new employer. For purposes of this
subdivision, a change in employment between state entities or from one school employer to another shall
not be considered as service with a new employer.

Non-represented miscellaneous employees who are “New Members”, as defined above are eligible to
participate in the District retirement program as contracted through the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (“CalPERS”). The retirement benefit is based on the highest average annual
compensation over a three-year period and the 2% at 62 formula.

6-3



Resolution 23-18 
July 20, 2023 

b. Classic Members – For the purposes of this section “Classic Member” is defined as a member who does not
meet the definition of a “New Member” as defined by PEPRA. Non-represented miscellaneous employees who
are “Classic Members”, as defined above, are eligible to participate in the District retirement program as
contracted through the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”). The retirement benefit is
based on the highest single year of salary and the 3% at 60 formula.

4.1 Retirement Contribution 

Miscellaneous Classifications 

“Classic Members”: Employee will pay the employee share of CalPERS contributions. 

”New Members”: Employee will pay the employee share of CalPERS contributions. 

4.2 Retirement Credit for Sick Leave 

The CalPERS contract allows unused accumulated sick leave to be converted to service time per the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code Section 20965.  

An employee may, upon retirement from the District under CalPERS, use any sick leave accumulation as service 
time, in accordance with the CalPERS formula. 

4.3 Fourth Level of 1959 Survivor Benefit 

The CalPERS contract allows a 1959 Survivor Benefit allowance to employees who aren’t covered by Social 
Security. There are six different benefit levels available, the District’s contract is for Fourth Level 1959 Survivor 
Benefits per California Government Code Section 21573.  

5. INSURANCE

5.1 Health, Dental, and Vision
ALL Miscellaneous Employees are entitled to participate in a District-sponsored Health, Dental, and Vision Plan. 

(a) The employee pays a share of the premium for any amount over the agreed-upon combined cap set forth
by the Board of Directors.

(b) The DISTRICT agrees to pay 80% of any offered HSA accounts annual deductible. The 80% shall be
paid incrementally on a quarterly basis by NCCFD with distribution into the Employee's HSA account
at the beginning of each quarter of the calendar year.  The District agrees to pay 80% of any of the
offered HSA accounts annual deductible. The 80% shall be deposited into the employee’s HSA
account at the beginning of each calendar year, and the employee will be responsible for the
remaining 20% of their deductible (pre-tax). The deductible “co-share” will only apply to Board
approved insurance plans. NCCFD agrees to pay the offered HSA accounts premiums and annual
overall deductible (not the same as out of pocket), combined total not to exceed the amounts
outlined in section 6(g) below.  Monthly premiums in excess of amounts outlined in section 6(g) will
the responsibility of the EMPLOYEE. The annual overall deductible co-share amount will be
determined by reducing the amounts outlined in section 6(g) by the monthly premium of the
selected HSA plan multiplied by 12 months.  The annual overall deductible co-share shall not exceed
the amount outlined in the selected HSA plan, or allowable by law.  Contributions made above the
amounts specified herein will be the responsibility of the EMPLOYEE.  Income tax and penalties
associated with contributions over the federal pre-tax limit will be the responsibility of the
EMPLOYEE. The annual overall deductible co-share will be paid as follows: a) first payroll in January
(4 months), April (3 months), July (3 months) and October (2 months), or b) in January (12 months)
upon request, or c) policy year to date balance upon request. Mid-term new hires and terminations
will receive HSA co-share payments prorated based on health insurance coverage start or end dates.
EMPLOYEES terminating employment prior to the end of the policy year will pay back a prorated co-
share amount. Note:  Benefits outlined in this section may change for life changing events that
effect insurance coverages (e.g. marriage).

6-4



Resolution 23-18 
July 20, 2023 

(c) The combined cap on the contribution rate paid by NCCFD is $1,693.58 per employee, per month.
This cap will be pro-rated for Part-time miscellaneous employees dependant on work schedule.

5.2 Life Insurance 
NCCFD shall provide life insurance for ALL miscellaneous employees in the minimum amount of $100,000.00. 
This is provided at no cost to the employee. Once an employee reaches the age of 65, the policy is reduced by 
the insurance company according to their age reduction rules and actuarial justifications to 65% of NCCFDS’s life 
insurance policy and at age 70 it reduces to 50% of NCCFD’s life insurance policy. 

5.3 Employee Assistance Program 
Employee and eligible family members are entitled to the District’s Employee Assistance Program. 

6. CSFA Membership
As an additional benefit, the District agrees to pay the annual membership fee to CSFA for each regular
employee.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors as Resolution of the Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
District at the Regular Board Meeting held on the 20th day of July, 2023 by the following roll call: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

_____________________________________ 
Keith Grueneberg, President of the Board 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

Attest: 

______________________________________ 
Tricia Bush, Secretary of the Board 

6-5



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN COUNTY OF NEVADA, ROUGH & READY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, PENN VALLEY FIRE 

PROTECTION DISTRICT, AND NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED FIRE DISTRICT 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“Memorandum”), dated as of August 8, 2023, is by and between 
the County of Nevada, hereinafter referred to as the “County”, and Rough & Ready Fire Protection 
District (“RRFPD”), Penn Valley Fire Protection District (“PVFPD”), and Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
District (“NCCFD”), hereinafter referred to as the “Districts”. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, in Nevada County, California, under the Fire Protection District Law of 1987, the Districts 
provide the inhabitants within District boundaries with various services, including, but not limited to, fire 
protection services, rescue services, emergency medical services, hazardous material emergency 
response services, ambulance services, and other services relating to the protection of lives and 
property (“Services”); and  

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2023, RRFPD filed a Resolution of Application for dissolution with the Local 
Agency Formation Committee of Nevada County (LAFCo) and notified the public that the Rough & Ready 
Station #59 would close by June 30, 2023, and all parties recognize that it is imperative that the Rough & 
Ready community has adequate fire protection services; and    

WHEREAS, on April 11, 2023, PVFPD filed a Resolution of Application for Annexation of the RRFPD 
territory, once RRFPD was dissolved; and   

WHEREAS, LAFCo has undertaken a countywide Municipal Services Review, which should be complete 
by the end of 2023; and  

WHEREAS, at the June 22, 2023, LAFCo meeting, the Districts announced that they would explore 
reorganizing into one district to increase the effectiveness and efficiency of fire protection and other 
services delivery, by seeking, pursuant to the provisions of Government Code section 56000 et seq., a 
consolidation (“Reorganization”); and  

WHEREAS, in recognition that independent fire protection districts in Nevada County are essential in 
ensuring public peace, health and safety, the County supports the Districts’ efforts to reorganize into 
one new district; and   

WHEREAS, California Government Code section 26227 provides that the County Board of Supervisors 
may appropriate and expend money to finance programs deemed to be necessary to meet the social 
needs of the population of the county, including, but not limited to, the areas of health, law 
enforcement and public safety; and 

WHEREAS, the Districts have requested funding from the County for temporary support of fire 
protection services at Rough & Ready Fire Station #59; which all parties acknowledge is in an important 
location to respond to the Rough & Ready community, to Penn Valley and other surrounding districts; 
and  

7-1



WHEREAS, the County Board of Supervisors, by this Memorandum, supports the Districts’ efforts to 
reorganize, which may take at least a year, and will also identify temporary gap funds to be used as 
match funding for Fiscal Years 2023-24 and 2024-25 to operate Rough & Ready Fire Station #59 in the 
interim, with all parties signing on by August 8, 2023.  

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:  

1. The County will support the Districts’ Reorganization efforts by providing gap funding
towards operation of Rough & Ready Fire Station #59 while the effort is underway:

a. The Districts will submit a funding request to the County no later than July 21, 2023,
that includes a plan and budget for the operation of Rough & Ready Fire Station #59
(see Attachment A, operation budget request for Rough & Ready Fire Station #59).

b. The County will provide temporary gap funding to support the operations of Rough
& Ready Fire Station #59 to serve the residents of the RRFPD and other surrounding
districts (e.g. PVFPD and NCCFD), in the amount of $500,000 per year for two years
(Fiscal Years 23-24 and 24-25), not to exceed a combined total of $1,000,000 to
support the long-term goal of the Districts’ Reorganization.

c. The County funds will serve as a match to RRFPD’s annual revenue, estimated at
$490,000 per fiscal year in tax revenues and special assessment fees, which shall be
used for the sole purpose of operating Rough & Ready Fire Station #59.

d. The County’s contribution may be provided from any available source including
grant funds (including the SAFER grant that PVFPD applied for), at the County’s
discretion.

2. The Districts will provide fire protection and other services within RRFPD boundaries:

a. The Districts will memorialize agreements to provide fire protection and other
services to the area formerly covered by the RRFPD, which services commenced
starting July 1, 2023.

b. The Districts agree to utilize County funds for the sole purpose of operating Rough &
Ready Fire Station #59.

c. The Districts will provide the County with a copy of their budgets and revenue and
expenditure detail for Fiscal Years 2023-24 and 2024-25, which shall include a clear
accounting of where the funding is appropriated in their budgets and its intended
use.  Accounting records of the Districts shall be open to inspection by the County
Auditor-Controller at any time during business hours for the purpose of determining

7-2



whether the funds were utilized only for the purpose of fire protection services 
within RRFPD’s boundaries.  

d. The Districts will develop and adopt a budget for the ongoing operation of Rough &
Ready Fire Station #59 that does not assume County contributions in Fiscal Year 25-
26 or beyond.

3. The Districts will initiate a Reorganization process with LAFCo. The Reorganization
process will include the following actions:

a. The Districts will enter into an agreement regarding coordination of efforts for
preparation of substantially similar resolutions of applications for the
Reorganization pursuant to Government Code section 56853, for consideration for
approval by each of their Boards of Directors, and if the Resolutions of Application
are approved, for preparation, completion, and submission of an application and
related documents to LAFCo for the Reorganization no later than February 1, 2024.

The agreement will define the level of service the newly reorganized district
(“Reorganized District”) will provide, and will address governance, administration,
and operations for the Reorganized district.

b. The Districts agree to cause to be prepared a comprehensive financial analysis to
support the Districts’ Reorganization proposal.

4. The County will make monthly payments to PVFPD based on the Districts meeting
continued expectations and requirements towards the Districts’ Reorganization, the
Districts’ operation of Rough & Ready Station #59 and tied to the “milestones” listed
below.

a. Milestone 1: The Districts will provide fire protection and other services to the area
formerly covered by the Rough & Ready Fire Protection District starting July 1, 2023.

b. Milestone 2: RRFPD, PVFPD, and NCCFD districts will bring the agreement regarding
Reorganization for approval by each of their Boards of Directors by December 1,
2023.

c. Milestone 3: The Districts will apply to LAFCo for reorganization by submitting
Resolutions of Application materials to LAFCo by February 1, 2024.

d. Milestone 4: The Districts will complete reorganization of the new district by July 1,
2024, if approved by LAFCo.

e. Milestone 5: The Districts will provide enhances services to the newly formed
district by December 31, 2024.

7-3



5. The Reorganized District may work with other interested fire districts on future
reorganizations.

6. The Districts are a separate legal entity from the County with respect to all matters set
forth in this Memorandum.  This Memorandum is not intended, and shall not be
construed, to create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, joint venture, joint
powers, or association between County and Districts.

7. The Districts agree to cooperate and supply any documentation reasonably necessary
for the convenience and information of the County.

8. The Districts shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws affecting the
services covered by this Memorandum.

9. This Memorandum may only be revisited and modified by written agreement of all the
parties.

10. This Memorandum shall commence on the date executed by the County and the
Districts.

11. This Memorandum contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties.

12. This Memorandum may be executed in counterparts. The execution of a signature page
of this Memorandum shall constitute the execution of the Memorandum, which shall be
binding on each party upon that party’s signing of such a counterpart.

13. This Memorandum will expire June 30, 2025.

14. NOTICES:  All notices, requests, demands, or other communications under this
Memorandum shall be in writing as follows:

To COUNTY: County of Nevada 
Executive Office 
950 Maidu Avenue 
Nevada City, CA 95959 
ATTN: Alison Lehman, CEO 

To RRFPD: Rough and Ready Fire Protection District 
14506 Rough and Ready Hwy 
Mailing address: PO Box 10  
Rough and Ready, CA 95975  
ATTN: Chief Don Wagner  

To PVFPD: Penn Valley Fire Protection District 
10513 Spenceville Rd. 
Penn Valley, CA 95946  

7-4



ATTN: Chief Don Wagner 

To NCCPD: Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
640 Coyote Street  
Nevada City, CA 95959  
ATTN: Chief Jason Robitaille 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and District, by their duly authorized representatives, have executed this 
Memorandum on the day and year first written above. 

COUNTY OF NEVADA 

________________________________ 
Edward C. Scofield 
Chair, Board of Supervisors 

Date:   __________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
Katharine L. Elliott, County Counsel 

ROUGH AND READY FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT 

________________________________ 

Date: __________________ 

PENN VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

________________________________ 

Date: __________________ 

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED FIRE 
DISTRICT 

________________________________ 

Date: __________________ 

7-5



Penn Valley Fire Protection District  Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
 10513 Spenceville Road          640 Coyote Street 
 Penn Valley, CA 95946           Nevada City, CA 95959   
(530) 432- 2630 (530) 265-4431
www.pennvalleyfire.com www.nccfire.com

Nevada County Board of Supervisors 
Attention Chairman Scofield 
950 Maidu Avenue 
Nevada City, CA 95959 

From: NCCFD Board of Directors & PVFPD Board of Directors 
Subject: Temporary Gap Funding to Operate Fire Station #59 During Reorganization Efforts 
Date:  July 5, 2023 

Chairman Scofield, 

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District (NCCFD) and Penn Valley Fire Protection District (PVFPD) 
officially request funding to maintain operational effectiveness for Rough and Ready Fire Station 59.  Rough 
& Ready Fire Protection District (RRFPD) has experienced a significant decline in revenues required to 
maintain minimum staffing of two firefighters on duty each day over the last several years.  Despite all 
efforts, the Rough & Ready Fire Board of Directors’ only option was to lay off all remaining employees and 
file for dissolution with the Nevada County LAFCo. 

To avert a catastrophic gap in coverage, PVFPD and NCCFD have partnered to develop a short-term plan 
that would maintain critical staffing levels needed for the RRFPD community. When presented to the 
Nevada County LAFCo during their June 2023 commission meeting the plan received clear support.  
Cooperatively our two fire districts, along with county staff, have determined a distinct path forward. This 
plan makes certain that Station 59 is staffed with two firefighters twenty-four hours a day for response.  

We request that the County of Nevada provide the necessary gap funding of $500,000 per year for the next 
two years. This will allow PVFPD and NCCFD to conduct the necessary phases to reorganize the three 
organizations into one.  We anticipate the merger of our organizations will eliminate costly redundancies 
while enhancing the overall efficiencies within our local government.  The purpose of this gap funding will 
ensure that the services for the citizens of PVFPD and NCCFD will not be diluted by the fiscal demands of 
co-staffing the RRFPD fire station.  We appreciate your continued support as we navigate through this 
process.  

Thank you for your consideration, 

Kindly, 

__________________________ ______ ________________ 
Bruce Stephenson Keith Grueneberg  
Board President, PVFPD  Board President, NCCFPD 

Cc: Allison Lehman 
Nevada County CEO 

8-1



Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA 95959 

(530) 265-4431  FAX (530) 265-4438 
nccfire@nccfire.com ● www.nccfire.com 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-19 

AMENDED AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL RESOLUTION 

Resolution 23-19 
July 20, 2023 

 WHEREAS, the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Board of Directors is authorized by Health 
and Safety Code Section 13861 (d) to appoint necessary employees, define their qualifications and duties, 
and to provide a pay schedule for the performance of their duties, and; 

WHEREAS, the Board adopted Resolution R23-12 on June 15, 2023; staff presented the authorized 
personnel for the 2023/2024 fiscal year; 

WHEREAS, a staffing agreement was entered into on July 1, 2023 between Penn Valley Fire 
Protection District, Rough and Ready Fire Protection District, and Nevada County Consolidated Fire District, 
to Staff Rough & Ready fire station 59; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors must increase the number of employees needed to protect the 
lives and property of its residents and to perform other staff functions, and; 

WHEREAS, the Board must budget accordingly for the positions authorized by this resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Nevada County Consolidated 
Fire District, the following number of personnel are hereby authorized for Fiscal Year 2023-2024: 

Description Total Number Description Total Number 
Fire Chief 1 Fleet and Facilities Supervisor  1 
Deputy Fire Chief 0 Fire Mechanic II 0 
Division Chief Operations 1 Fire Mechanic I 1 
Division Chief Fire Marshal 1 Service Technician 0 
Battalion Chief 3 Administrative Services Manager 1 
Fire Captain 9  Finance Manager 0 
Lieutenant 6  Finance Administrative Asst.  1 
Firefighter/Operator 15 Administrative Services Assistant .5 
Fire Prevention Officer II 1 Board Secretary .5 
Seasonal Firefighters 6 Reserves 15

ON A MOTION by Director Nelson, seconded by , the 
foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 20th day of July 2023, by the following vote to wit: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

9-1

mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com
http://www.nccfire.com/


Resolution 23-19 
July 20, 2023 

_____________________________________ 
Keith Grueneberg, President of the Board 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

Attest: 

Tricia Bush, Secretary of the Board 

9-2



1 

William D. Ross 
David Schwarz 
Kypros G. Hostetter 

Law Offices of 

William D. Ross 
400 Lambert Avenue 

Palo Alto, California 94306 
Telephone: (650) 843-8080 
Facsimile: (650) 843-8093 

Los Angeles Office: 

       11420 Santa Monica Blvd 
       #25532 
       Los Angeles, CA 90025  

File No. 19/--

June 30, 2023 

VIA E-MAIL 
keithgrueneberg@nccfire.com 

The Honorable Keith Grueneberg, President 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Board of Directors 
640 Coyote Street  
Nevada City, CA 95959 

Re:  Proposal for Legal Services; Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

Dear President Grueneberg: 

This communication presents a proposal for legal services by the Law Offices of William 
D. Ross (“Firm”) to the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District (“District”) for general legal
advice and representation to the District on issues associated with the proposed charge of
organization of the Rough and Ready Fire Protection District and potential further reorganization
under the Cortese Knox Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (the “Matter”).

1. Scope of Services

The District and Firm acknowledge and understand that this agreement does not involve or 
extend to representation or advice by the Firm on any matter other than that specifically described 
above.   

2. Fees

The Firm provides discounted hourly rates for its governmental clients.  

Based on these rates, the Firm’s legal services would be billed on an hourly manner as 
follows: $325.00/hr for partners, $250.00/hr for associate attorneys, $125.00/hr for paralegals, and 
$80.00/hr for legal secretaries.    

These hourly rates are subject to an annual 3% rate increase beginning July 1, 2024.  Hourly 
rate increases in excess of 3% are subject to review and change by the Firm on a periodic basis by 

10-1



June 30, 2023 
Page 2 

2 

written amendment to this Agreement by Firm and the District.   

All time spent in connection with the Matter by legal personnel of the Firm will be billed, 
including without limitation, time spent in office conferences between or among the legal 
personnel assigned the Matter and time in personal telephonic conference with your 
representatives.  Legal personnel will be assigned to the Matter solely in the Firm’s judgment.  The 
Firm does not charge for travel time.   

The Firm’s statements are in a detailed diary format in minimum increments of one-quarter 
of an hour and are payable within thirty (30) days of receipt.  Any amounts outstanding more than 
thirty (30) days will incur interest at 1% per month.   

2. Costs and Expenses

Any cost incurred in connection with the representation and advice to District, such as 
messenger services, filing fees and other out-of-pocket expenses, will be separately billed and 
reflected on the monthly statement.  District will be expected to directly pay the amount of any 
charges over $200.00 for services performed by third parties. 

Firm’s costs include, but are not limited to, the following and are computed in the following 
manner: 

Mileage $ .655 per mile (or current IRS Rules) 
Document Preparation $ 60.00 per hour 
Access Charges for Legal  
Databases Cost varies on amount of monthly use 

3. Termination of Services

The District will have the right at any time to terminate the Firm’s services upon written 
notice to the Firm, and the Firm will immediately, after receiving such notice, cease to render 
additional services.  Such termination will not, however, relieve the District of the obligation to 
pay the fees due for services rendered and costs incurred prior to such termination. 

If the District fails to meet any of its obligations under this Agreement, including but not 
limited to, fully cooperating and assisting the Firm in its representation advice with respect to the 
Matter, the Firm will have the right to terminate this Agreement, and the District will take all steps 
necessary to free the Firm of any obligation to perform further, including without limitation, the 
execution of any documents necessary to complete the Firm’s discharge or withdrawal. The rights 
of the Firm hereunder are in addition to those created by statute or recognized by Rules of 
Professional Conduct. 

4. Maintenance of Malpractice Insurance

10-2



June 30, 2023 
Page 3 

3 

Consistent with California Business and Professions Code section 6148(a), Firm maintains 
legal malpractice insurance with Citizens Insurance Company of America/Westport Insurance 
Corporation with present policy limits of $1,000,000.00 per claim and $1,000,000.00 in the 
aggregate.  Additionally, Firm maintains commercial general liability limits of $2,000,000.00 per 
occurrence, automobile liability limits of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and workers compensation 
liability limits of $1,000,000.00, with a separate endorsement for cyber coverage through Lloyds 
of London. These amounts may change annually. A Certificate of Liability of Insurance showing 
the Firm’s insurance policies is available upon request. 

5. Document Retention

The District agrees that it will be responsible for providing us with all documents pertinent 
to this matter.  Even if the District has in effect document retention policies that may result in the 
scheduled destruction or discarding of documents that may be relevant to this matter, please do 
not destroy or discard any possibly relevant documents until the District speaks with us further. 

6. Our Document Retention

It is our policy and practice to destroy our files five (5) years after the file is first closed 
unless the District requests a shorter or longer retention period in writing.  Files are generally 
closed at the conclusion of a lawsuit or completion of a transaction or matter. 

7. No Warranties

The Law Offices of William D. Ross has made no guarantees to the District concerning the 
outcome of the Matter, and nothing in this letter agreement will be construed as such a guarantee.  
The District acknowledges that we have not made any representations, promises, warranties or 
guarantees to them, express or implied, regarding the outcome of the Matter. 

8. Binding Arbitration

Any dispute concerning our fees or charges shall, if the District so elects, be submitted to 
arbitration under rules of the California State Bar and shall be binding if: (i) it is mutually agreed 
to after any such dispute arises; or, (ii) such arbitration becomes binding under such rules.  Any 
dispute concerning our fees or charges not so submitted to binding arbitration under the rules of 
the California State Bar, or that remains unresolved after non-binding arbitration under such rules, 
and any other dispute between the District and this Firm or any of our attorneys and agents, 
including but not limited to claims of malpractice, errors or omissions, or any other claim of any 
kind regardless of the facts or the legal theories, shall be finally settled by mandatory binding 
arbitration in Palo Alto, California, conducted in accordance with California Code of Civil 
Procedure §§ 1282 et seq., including, but not limited to, section 1283.05, with each party to bear 
its own costs and  attorneys' fees and disbursements.  Such arbitration shall be conducted before a 

10-3



June 30, 2023 
Page 4 

4 

single arbitrator.  Judgment on a binding arbitration award may be entered in any court of 
competent jurisdiction.  We mutually acknowledge that, by this Agreement to arbitrate, each of us 
irrevocably waives our rights to court or jury trial.  The District have the right to consult separate 
legal counsel at any time as to any matter, including whether to enter into this Agreement for legal 
services and consent to the foregoing agreement to arbitrate.  

9. Acceptance of Services

If the terms and conditions of the legal services described herein are acceptable to you, 
please indicate acceptance by executing the copy of this proposal and returning the same to our 
office by e-mail. 

We appreciate the opportunity to assist District in the Matter. 

Very truly yours, 

William D. Ross 

WDR:cb 

cc: Jason Robitaille, Fire Chief 

Keith Grueneberg, on behalf of District, agrees to the terms and conditions for legal services of 
the Law Offices of William D. Ross, a Professional Corporation, described in this letter as 
authorized by District for execution.   

Dated: July   _______, 2023 By: ________________________________ 
            Keith Grueneberg, President  

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
Board of Directors  

10-4



Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

Resolution 23-20 

2023/2024 Updated Fiscal Year District Wage and Compensation Schedule 

Resolution 23-20 
July 20, 2023 

WHEREAS, the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Board of Directors has the authority 
under Section 13861 of the Health and Safety Code to establish compensation for safety management, 
safety non-management, and miscellaneous non-represented employees; and 

WHEREAS, the pay ranges and compensation schedule in attachment “A” for the identified job 
classifications are hereby established effective June 25, 2023. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors as Resolution of the Nevada County 
Consolidated Fire District at the Regular Board Meeting held on the 20th day of July 2023 by the 
following roll call: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

_____________________________________ 
Keith Grueneberg, President of the Board 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

Attest: 

______________________________________ 
Tricia Bush, Secretary of the Board  

11-1



Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
Wage and Compensation Schedule
Fiscal Year 2023/24
Effective June 25, 2023 Step Increases

1 2 3 4 5 Staffing

Safety
Hourly Rate (per MOU)
Firefighter shift 19.89$            20.94$            22.00$            23.06$            24.11$            12
Lieutentant shift 24.11$            25.21$            26.43$            27.67$            29.13$            6
Captain shift 29.13$            30.47$            31.87$            33.29$            34.68$            9
Battalion Chief shift 34.68$            36.07$            37.64$            39.20$            40.78$            3
Fire Prevention Officer II 40 Hr 38.59$            40.37$            42.23$            44.10$            45.95$            1
Fleet & Facilities Sup. 40 Hr 45.95$            48.25$            50.67$            53.20$            55.87$            1

Salary
Division Chief 137,616$        144,498$        151,722$        159,319$        167,273$        2
Fire Chief 176,331$        184,798$        193,688$        203,021$        212,822$        1

Non-Safety
Hourly Rate
Service Technician 40 Hr 21.37$            22.27$            23.23$            24.22$            25.27$            0
Admin 40 Hr 24.28$            25.61$            27.02$            28.51$            30.10$            1
Fire Inspector 40 Hr 24.69$            25.98$            27.27$            28.56$            29.86$            1
Fire Mechanic I 40 Hr 26.35$            27.75$            29.15$            30.55$            31.95$            1
Part-Time Admin 20 - 24 Hrs 27.81$            29.20$            30.37$            31.58$            32.85$            1 or 2

Salary
84,552$          86,838$          92,514$          95,035$          99,891$          1

Wages do not include education incentive, longevity incentive, 40-hour conversion or shift differential.
Fire Prevention Officer II, reflects 40-hour conversion.

Admin. Svcs Manager 
/Finance Manager

11-2



Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

Resolution 23-21 

Enter into an agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus 
 for One (1) Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 4X4 Enforcer 1500 GPM Pumper

Resolution 23-21 
July 20, 2023 

WHEREAS, the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District (NCCFD) has a capital replacement 
plan and Staff has identified the need for an apparatus replacement in the future; 

WHEREAS, Staff has identified that the times to build an engine have increased to a four to five-
year build time and need to enter into an agreement to get on the build list; 

WHEREAS, Attachment A is proposal number 60622-23B from Golden State Fire Apparatus for 
one Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 4X4 Enforcer 1500 GPM Pumper with a purchase price of 
$1,096,832.20; 

WHEREAS, Staff will identify funds every fiscal year to place into an account as a down payment 
for the engine when payment is due, and; 

WHEREAS, Staff will seek financing with the best available APR for the balance remaining on 
the apparatus. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Nevada County 
Consolidated Fire District authorizes the Fire Chief or designee to proceed with the proposal and enter 
into agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus proposal number 60622-23B in the amount of 
$1,096,832.20 and sign the agreement. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
District at the Regular Board Meeting held on the 20th day of July 2023 by the following roll call: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

_____________________________________ 
Keith Grueneberg, President of the Board 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

Attest: 

______________________________________ 
Tricia Bush, Secretary of the Board  

12-1



PREPARED ESPECIALLY FOR: 

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED 
FIRE DISTRICT

One (1) Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
4X4 Enforcer 1500 GPM Pumper 

12-2



Product Proposal 

Standard Terms and Conditions (Exhibit A)

Product Specifications (Exhibit B)

▪ Supporting Documents (If Applicable)

◦ Electrical Analysis

◦ Turning Radius Report

Product Warranties (Exhibit C)

Dealer Supplied Products and/or Services (Exhibit D)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1
2
3

4
5

goldenstatefire.com

12-3



PRODUCT
PROPOSAL1

12-4



goldenstatefire.com 

7400 Reese Road, Sacramento, CA 95828  | 916.330.1638 

PRODUCT PROPOSAL FOR: 

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
14811 McCourtney Road 
Grass Valley, CA 95949

Sales Consultant
Mark Paulsen 

mark@goldenstatefire.com 
Mobile: (209) 996-8830

Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. (“GSFA”) is pleased to provide this proposal for the fire apparatus(es) and equipment 
identified below (the "Product”) to NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED FIRE DISTRICT (“Customer”) for consideration. This 
proposal (this “Product Proposal”) includes the following exhibits attached hereto: the Standard Terms and Conditions attached 
as Exhibit A (the “Terms and Conditions”); the Product Specifications attached as Exhibit B (the “Specifications”); the Product 
Warranties attached as Exhibit C; and the Dealer Supplied Products and/or Services attached as Exhibit D (the “Dealer Supplied 
Products/Services List”) (all of the foregoing, collectively, the “Agreement”). Through its signature below or other Acceptance 
(as defined on page 2), Customer acknowledges having received and read, and agrees to be bound by, the Agreement.  The 
Agreement shall be effective as of the latest date appearing in the signature blocks below (the “Executed Date”). 

PAYMENT TERMS – Customer shall pay the total purchase price set forth directly above (the “Grand Total Purchase Price”) (as such 
amount may be adjusted by Change Order in accordance with the Terms and Conditions) to GSFA at the time of GSFA’s delivery of 
the applicable Product to Customer’s address listed above (or Customer’s pick up of such Product at GSFA’s facilities, if approved by 
GSFA).  GSFA shall have no obligation to deliver, or permit pick up of the Product if the Customer does not have full payment ready 
when the Product is complete and ready to deliver or pick up, as applicable. 

MANUFACTURER – Customer acknowledges that GSFA is not an agent of the Product manufacturer identified above 
(“Manufacturer”) and is not capable of binding Manufacturer. Within five (5) business days of the Executed Date, GSFA shall submit 
an order form to the Manufacturer for the Product.  GSFA’s further performance under the Agreement is contingent upon 
Manufacturer’s acceptance of such order form at the price and on the terms GSFA believed to be available when submitting this 
Product Proposal to Customer. If Manufacturer rejects such order as submitted or fails to respond to GSFA within a reasonable 
amount of time, GSFA shall notify Customer in writing, and unless GSFA and Customer otherwise agree in writing, the Agreement 
shall then terminate and have no further force or effect. 

SUBMITTED DATE EXPIRATION DATE GSFA PROPOSAL # MANUFACTURER BID # MANUFACTURER CONSORTIUM 
06/22/2023 07/31/2023 60622-23B 920 Pierce 

Manufacturing, 
Inc. 

HGAC contract FS12-
19, Product Code 

FS19VC07 

ITEM PRODUCT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE 
A One (1) Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 4X4 Enforcer 1500 GPM Pumper 1,009,914.37 

B 8.375% State Sales Tax 84,580.33 

C California Tire Fee 10.50 

D 100% Performance Bond 2,327.00 

E GRAND TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE 1,096,832.20 

12-5

mailto:mark@goldenstatefire.com


goldenstatefire.com 

7400 Reese Road, Sacramento, CA 95828  | 916.330.1638 

PRODUCT COMPLETION – The Product shall be ready for final inspection by Customer at the manufacturing facility within 
approximately 47.5 to 50.5 MONTHS after the Executed Date. The foregoing estimate is provided as a good faith approximation as 
of the date of submission of this Product Proposal and is subject to the Terms and Conditions. 

PREDELIVERY SERVICE – If applicable, after transportation from the manufacturing facility and prior to final delivery or pick up, the 
Product shall receive those additional Products and/or services identified on the Dealer Supplied Products/Services List. It is 
estimated that such a service will add approximately 0.5 to 1 MONTH(S) to the above Product completion estimate.  The foregoing 
estimate is provided as a good faith approximation as of the date of submission of this Product Proposal and is subject to the Terms 
and Conditions.  

PROPOSAL EXPIRATION – This Product Proposal supersedes any previous proposal(s) presented to Customer by GSFA and its 
employees and may be accepted by Customer on or before the Expiration Date identified above. Unless accepted by the Expiration 
Date, GSFA reserves the right to withdraw this Product Proposal or to alter its terms (including by providing updated Product pricing) 
prior to an order being accepted. 

PURCHASE ORDER – If the Customer elects to issue a Purchase Order (PO) it shall be made out to: Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. – 
7400 Reese Road – Sacramento, CA 95828. 

ACCEPTANCE – ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PROPOSAL CREATES AN ENFORCEABLE BINDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN GSFA AND 
CUSTOMER. “ACCEPTANCE” MEANS THAT THE CUSTOMER DELIVERS TO GSFA: (A) A SIGNED COPY OF THIS PRODUCT PROPOSAL, OR 
(B) A SIGNED COPY OF A PURCHASE ORDER INCORPORATING THE AGREEMENT IN ITS ENTIRETY. ANY ADDITIONAL OR DIFFERENT
TERMS, WHETHER CONTAINED IN CUSTOMER’S FORMS OR OTHERWISE PRESENTED BY CUSTOMER AT ANY TIME, ARE HEREBY
REJECTED AND OF NO EFFECT UNLESS APPROVED IN WRITING SIGNED BY GSFA.

COUNTERPARTS - This Product Proposal may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original 
(including copies sent to a party by electronic transmission) as against the party signing such counterpart, but which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument.  A signed copy of this Product Proposal delivered by facsimile, email or other means of 
electronic transmission will be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Product Proposal.  
If this Product Proposal is returned to GSFA with the signature of Customer’s authorized representative but without an attestation or 
co-signers signature, then absent Customer’s written notice to the contrary, GSFA shall be entitled to rely on such single signature as 
sufficient evidence of the signatory’s authority to execute the Agreement and bind Customer thereby. 

[Signature Page Follows] 

12-6



goldenstatefire.com 

7400 Reese Road, Sacramento, CA 95828  | 916.330.1638 

INTENDING TO CREATE A BINDING AGREEMENT, Customer and GSFA have each caused this Product Proposal dated 06/22/2023, 
GSFA Proposal Number 60622-23B to be executed by their duly authorized representatives effective as of the Executed Date.  

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY CUSTOMER 

AUTHORIZED CUSTOMER REPRESENTATIVE: 

_______________________________________ 
Signature 

_______________________________________ 
Print Name 

_______________________________________ 
Title 

_______________________________________ 
Date  

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY GSFA 

AUTHORIZED GSFA REPRESENTATIVE: 

_______________________________________ 
Signature 

_______________________________________ 
Print Name 

_______________________________________ 
Title 

_______________________________________ 
Date  

12-7



STANDARD TERMS
AND CONDITIONS 
Exhibit “A”
2

12-8



STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Definitions.

a. “Agreement” has the meaning given in the Product Proposal.
b. “Customer” means the customer identified in the Product Proposal.
c. “Dealer Preparation,” if applicable, means additional product(s) and/or services added by GSFA after

Manufacturer’s completion of the Product and prior to delivery, in accordance with the Dealer Supplied
Products/Services List.

d. “Dealer Supplied Products/Services List” means the Dealer Supplied Products and/or Services List attached
to the Product Proposal as Exhibit D, which reflects all Dealer Preparation under the Agreement absent a
valid Change Order(s).

e. “Grand Total Purchase Price” means the total purchase price for the Product identified in the Product
Proposal (subject to any adjustments required or permitted by these Terms and Conditions, including by
the execution of a valid Change Order(s).

f. “GSFA” means Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc., a California corporation.
g. “Manufacturer” means the person or persons, company, firm, corporation, partnership, or other

organization identified in the Product Proposal as responsible for manufacturing the Product.
h. “Party” or “Parties” means GSFA and/or Customer, as applicable.
i. “Prepayment Discount” means a discount to the purchase price for the Product granted to Customer in

connection with Customer’s advance payment of the Grand Total Purchase Price (or portion thereof, as
specified in the Product Proposal).

j. “Product” means the fire apparatus(es) and any associated equipment listed in the Product Proposal and
further described in the Specifications.

k. “Product Proposal” means the GSFA proposal executed by Customer to which these Terms and Conditions
are attached.

l. “Product Warranties” means the Manufacturer warranties for the Product attached to the Product
Proposal as Exhibit C.

m. “Specifications” means the specifications for the Product attached to the Product Proposal as Exhibit B.
n. “Terms and Conditions” means these Standard Terms and Conditions, which are attached to the Product

Proposal as Exhibit A.

2. Purchase and Payment.

a. Purchase. Customer agrees to purchase the Product at the Grand Total Purchase Price (as such amount
may be adjusted in accordance with these Terms and Conditions), pursuant to the payment terms set forth in the 
Product Proposal. The Grand Total Purchase Price is payable in U.S. dollars. 

b. Contingency Reserve Fund.  The Grand Total Purchase Price may include an amount to be set aside for
the purpose of funding any future costs or financial obligations incurred by Customer under the Product Proposal or 
any valid Change Order(s) (the “Contingency Reserve Fund”). If applicable, the amount of any required Contingency 
Reserve Fund will be set forth in either the Product Proposal or Exhibit D. The Contingency Reserve Fund may be 
withdrawn against by Customer or GSFA for the purpose of satisfying Customer’s payment obligations under the 
initial Product Proposal or any valid Change Order(s) (including, without limitation, a Change Order submitted by 
GSFA pursuant to Section 8.b).  If a Contingency Reserve Fund is required under the Agreement, the amount of such 
fund is not intended as an estimate of the actual additional costs of contingencies, Change Orders, unforeseen items 
or other required work that may be incurred under the Agreement after submission of the Product Proposal to 
Customer, which amounts Customer acknowledges may exceed the Contingency Reserve Fund amount.  The balance 
of any Contingency Reserve Fund will be credited against Customer’s payment obligations, or otherwise returned to 
Customer within thirty (30) calendar days of delivery of all Products under the Agreement (provided that Customer 
has paid all amounts owed under the Agreement as of such date). 

12-9



c. Prepayment Discount. If GSFA has granted Customer a Prepayment Discount, Customer must provide
each associated prepayment (each, a “Prepayment”) within the time frame specified in the Product Proposal in 
order to receive such discount.  Customer’s failure to timely make such Prepayment may result in: (i) GSFA’s 
termination of the Agreement; and/or (ii) Customer’s loss of the Prepayment Discount for the portion of the Grand 
Total Purchase Price represented by such outstanding Prepayment and the application of a late fee as set forth in 
Section 6, in each case in GSFA’s sole discretion. 

d. State Sales Tax. Customer shall be responsible for the cost of state sales tax associated with, or
attributable to, the Product. The taxes stated in the Product Proposal are subject to adjustment for the applicable 
state sales tax rate in effect at the time of delivery. Therefore, the sales tax set forth on the Product Proposal is only 
an estimate of such taxes and will be increased or decreased at the time of delivery if a change in the applicable 
sales tax rate has occurred, in which case Customer shall pay GSFA (or be refunded by GSFA) the difference in the 
applicable sales tax. 

3. Product Completion Date. Within thirty (30) calendar days of the date on which the last required signatory
executes the Product Proposal (such date, the “Executed Date”), GSFA shall submit to Customer a tentative Product
completion date (which may differ from the Product completion estimate contained in the Product Proposal).  Due
to global supply chain constraints, any Product completion date contained herein, or in the Product Proposal, or
otherwise provided to Customer, is a good faith estimate only as of the date provided to Customer, and merely an
approximation based on current information available to GSFA and Manufacturer.  Customer shall not be entitled to
rely on any such estimate, and GSFA shall have no liability to Customer for a failure by GSFA or Manufacturer to
meet any such estimate.  All Product completion estimates are subject to modification and, if applicable, GSFA will
provide updates to such estimates to Customer when available.

4. Stock / Demo Units. Notwithstanding any other provision contained in the Agreement (including Section 12 hereof
concerning warranties), any Products constituting stock/demo unit(s) are sold to Customer on an as-is, first-come
and first served-basis and GSFA makes no further representation or warranty to any customer with respect to such
unit(s). Regardless of the terms of the Product Proposal, GSFA shall only be obligated to sell such stock/demo unit(s)
to the first customer to enter into a purchase agreement with GSFA identifying such unit(s), and after the execution
by GSFA of such agreement any subsequent purchase agreement (including the Agreement, as applicable) shall have 
no further force or effect with respect to such unit(s).

5. Multiple Unit Purchase. If the Grand Total Purchase Price includes pricing for multiple Products, the Product price
stated in the Product Proposal shall only be valid if the quantity of Products being proposed are purchased at the
same time, pursuant to the same Agreement.  GSFA shall have no obligation to offer the same price for any Product
if purchased by Customer pursuant to a later purchase agreement.

6. Late Fee; Storage Fee. A late fee equal to 0.033% of the outstanding portion of the Grand Total Purchase Price will
be charged per calendar day for overdue payments beginning ten (10) calendar days after the payment is due and
continuing for the first thirty (30) calendar days thereafter. After such thirty (30) calendar day period, the late fee
shall increase to 0.044% per calendar day until payment of the outstanding portion of the Grand Total Purchase Price
is received. If Customer is unable to satisfy the delivery requirements hereunder or is unwilling to take delivery of
the Product, then GSFA shall be entitled to a storage charge running from the earlier of: (i) the date of delivery
agreed to between GSFA and Customer (provided GSFA is willing and able to deliver the Product on such date), or
(ii) twenty-one (21) calendar days after GSFA notifies Customer that the Product is available for delivery.  The storage 
charge is equal to: (i) $175.00 per calendar day per apparatus stored, or (ii) the actual charges incurred by GSFA with
a third party for storage of the Product, whichever is greater.  Such storage charge shall continue until the actual
time of delivery and Customer’s possession of the Product, and any such storage by GSFA or such third party shall
be at the sole risk of Customer.

12-10



7. Delivery; Inspection and Acceptance.

a. Delivery.  Subject to Section 5 hereof, the Product is scheduled to be delivered to the location and within
the time period specified in the Product Proposal.  Such delivery date is an estimate, and GSFA is, notwithstanding 
this Section 7.a, not bound to such date unless it otherwise agrees in a separate writing to complete delivery by a 
date certain. For the avoidance of doubt, GSFA is not responsible for delivery delays caused by or because of actions, 
omissions or conduct of Customer, the Manufacturer, or their respective employees, affiliates, suppliers, 
contractors, and carriers.  Risk of loss for the Product shall pass to Customer at the point and time of delivery (which 
shall include an attempted delivery by GSFA which cannot be completed due to any act of Customer).  However, title 
to the Product shall only pass to Customer upon delivery if Customer has then fully paid GSFA all amounts due 
hereunder (including additional amounts due under any valid Change Order).  Absent GSFA’s separate written 
agreement, which it may or may not provide in its sole and absolute discretion, delivery of the Product will not occur 
before Customer has fully paid all amounts due under the Agreement and provided proof of insurance reasonably 
satisfactory to GSFA.  If GSFA permits Customer to take possession of the Product, Customer may not mount 
equipment, conduct training, or place the Product into service until all amounts due under the Agreement have been 
paid.  If Customer has ordered multiple Products, GSFA reserves the right to deliver such Products in installments 
and to separately invoice Customer for such Products.  

b. Inspection and Acceptance. Upon delivery, Customer shall have ten (10) calendar days within which to
inspect the Product for substantial conformance to the Specifications, and in the event of substantial non-
conformance to the Specifications to furnish GSFA with written notice sufficient to permit GSFA to evaluate such 
non-conformance (“Notice of Nonconformance to Specifications”). Contingent upon part availability and 
Customer’s cooperation, any Product not in substantial conformance to material Specifications shall be remedied by 
GSFA (by repair or replacement, at GSFA’s election) within thirty (30) calendar days from GSFA’s receipt of the Notice 
of Nonconformance to Specifications. In the event GSFA does not receive a Notice of Nonconformance to 
Specifications within ten (10) calendar days of delivery, the Product will be deemed to be in conformance with 
Specifications and accepted by Customer. 

8. Changes to Agreement Terms.

a. Change Orders. The Customer may request that GSFA incorporate a change to the Product or the
Specifications for the Product, or GSFA may submit changes to the Agreement required or permitted to be made by 
GSFA (pursuant to Section 8.b or otherwise) by delivering a written Change Order to the other party hereto, which 
shall include a description of the proposed change sufficient to permit the receiving party to evaluate the feasibility 
of such change (either, a “Change Order”). For any Change Order submitted by Customer, GSFA will provide 
Customer a written response (a “Response”) stating (i) whether GSFA will accommodate such Change Order (which 
GSFA may decide in its sole and absolute discretion); and (ii) the terms of the modification to the order, including 
any increase or decrease in the Grand Total Purchase Price resulting from such Change Order, a date on which any 
increase in the Grand Total Purchase Price must be paid, and an estimate of any effect on production scheduling or 
delivery resulting from such Change Order. Customer shall have seven (7) calendar days after receipt of the Response 
to notify GSFA as to whether Customer desires to make the changes GSFA has approved in the Response.  In the 
event Customer countersigns GSFA’s Response, Customer shall pay the increase (or be refunded the decrease) in 
the Grand Total Purchase Price by the date specified in the Response. GSFA may also send Customer a Change Order 
to account for any changes to the Agreement required or permitted to be made by GSFA (including those changes 
required pursuant to Section 8.b hereof), and such Change Order shall be effective upon delivery to Customer unless 
Customer elects to terminate the applicable Product order under the Agreement in accordance with Section 9.  

b. Additional Changes.

i. Component Price Volatility. GSFA shall not be responsible for any unforeseen price increase or
surcharge enacted by suppliers of major components of the Product (including but not limited to commercial chassis, 
engine, transmission, and fire pump) after Customer becomes bound by the Agreement. Customer shall be 
responsible for all amounts arising from any price increases for major components of the Product (including all 

12-11



associated taxes and fees thereon) occurring after the execution of the Agreement which increases the cost of the 
Product to GSFA, and such amounts will be documented on a Change Order adjusting the Grand Total Purchase Price 
accordingly. Customer shall pay any such price increase prior to Product delivery. 

ii. New Legal Standards.  In the event the Product design, materials or specifications require an
alteration arising from new regulations issued by any governmental entity or trade association, including, but not 
limited to, the NFPA, DOT, and EPA, and such alteration increases the cost of the Product to GSFA, Customer shall 
be responsible for changes to the Grand Total Purchase Price arising from such alteration. GSFA shall promptly notify 
Customer when it becomes aware of any potential or required change in regulations occurring prior to delivery that 
would impact the Product purchased.  

iii. Change Orders.  Customer shall execute any Change Order submitted by GSFA documenting any 
of the changes required or permitted by Sections 8.b.i and 8.b.ii above (which shall, to the extent practicable, itemize 
any increases in the Grant Total Purchase Price and specify a commercially reasonable date by which Customer must 
pay such increase), unless Customer instead elects to terminate the applicable Product order under the Agreement 
within fifteen (15) calendar days of Customer’s receipt of such Change Order and in accordance with Section 9.  
Absent such a termination, failure to execute a Change Order does not alter Customer’s obligations under this 
Section 8.b. 

c. Changes in Commercial Specifications.  Specifications for all components of the Product manufactured
by companies other than the Manufacturer are subject to change without notice. Specifications for such components 
will be as available at the time of manufacture of the Product. GSFA shall not be liable for any deviations in such 
specifications arising from a substitution of components or changes in the design of any component by their original 
manufacturer. 

9. Termination.

a. By Customer. Customer may terminate a Product order identified in the Product Proposal or a Change
Order by providing written notice to GSFA in accordance with Section 16 hereof.  If Customer elects to terminate a 
Product order, Customer shall pay GSFA a cancellation fee as follows: (a) after the Product order is accepted and 
entered by GSFA, 10% of the portion of the Grand Total Purchase Price applicable to such Product (including all 
associated taxes, fees and costs) (such amount, the “Product Purchase Price”); (b) after completion of the pre-
construction phase of the order process, 20% of the Product Purchase Price; and (c) after the requisition of any 
materials or commencement of any manufacturing or assembly of the Product by either GSFA or Manufacturer but 
before substantial completion of such Product, 50% of the Product Purchase Price. Customer shall not be permitted 
to terminate a Product order after substantial completion of manufacturing and assembly of such Product (excluding 
any Dealer Preparation or other pre-delivery services or untypical Product customization, if applicable). 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the applicable tier of cancellation fee is not sufficient to cover all actual costs and 
fees incurred by GSFA with Manufacturer in connection with Customer’s termination of the Product order 
(“Manufacturer Termination Fees”), then in addition to such cancellation fee Customer shall pay the balance of all 
Manufacturer Termination Fees. If Customer received a Prepayment Discount, such discount shall not be considered 
for the purpose of calculating the above cancellation fee. The tier of cancellation fee applicable to any cancellation, 
as well as the determination of whether a Product has reached substantial completion, shall be in the sole and 
absolute discretion of GSFA. Customer may request a fee waiver, and GSFA, in its sole discretion, may agree to waive 
and/or adjust such fee.  GSFA will return the balance of the Grand Total Purchase Price or Product Purchase Price, 
as applicable, within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of the cancellation of the Product order or 
termination of the Agreement.  

Customer may terminate the Agreement for an Event of Default by GSFA after providing GSFA with written notice in 
accordance with Section 16 (which notice shall describe with reasonably particularity the Event of Default justifying 
such termination) if such Event of Default remains uncured (if capable of cure) thirty (30) days following GSFA’s 
receipt of such notice; provided, however, that the foregoing cure period shall continue if and for so long as GSFA 

12-12



has commenced and is continuing to undertake commercially reasonable efforts to cure such Event of Default as 
promptly as reasonably practicable.   

b. By GSFA.  GSFA may terminate the Agreement for an Event of Default by Customer after providing
Customer with written notice in accordance with Section 16 (which notice shall describe with reasonably 
particularity the Event of Default justifying such termination) if such Event of Default remains uncured (if capable of 
cure) thirty (30) days following Customer’s receipt of such notice; provided, however, that the foregoing cure period 
shall continue if and for so long as Customer has commenced and is continuing to undertake commercially 
reasonable efforts to cure such Event of Default as promptly as reasonably practicable. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, GSFA may terminate the Agreement effective immediately upon written notice to Customer for 
Customer’s failure to pay any amount owed under the Agreement when due. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if Customer terminates a Product order in accordance with 
Section 9.a above, GSFA may elect to instead terminate the Agreement upon notice to Customer in accordance with 
Section 16 hereof. If GSFA terminates the Agreement in accordance with this Section 9.b, Customer shall pay the 
applicable tier of cancellation fee for all Products pursuant to Section 9.a above as if Customer had elected to 
terminate each applicable Product order. 

c. Based on Discontinuation or Cancellation by Manufacturer. In the event that Manufacturer cancels a
Product order (provided that such cancellation is not the result of an act by Customer in violation of the Agreement) 
or discontinues the manufacture of a Product prior to its completion and delivery: (i) if such Product is the only 
Product contemplated under the Agreement, then the Agreement shall terminate; or (ii) if additional Products are 
contemplated under the Agreement, then only the Product order for the applicable cancelled or discontinued 
Product shall be terminated.  Such Agreement termination or Product termination, as applicable, shall be effective 
upon GSFA’s written notice to Customer of such cancellation or discontinuance in accordance with Section 16 hereof.  
GSFA’s only obligation to Customer in such event shall be the return of any Prepayment paid by Customer for the 
cancelled or discontinued Product.  For the avoidance of doubt, the cancellation fees contemplated in Section 9.a 
hereof shall not apply in the event of a termination pursuant to this Section 9.c. 

10. Customer’s Obligations. Customer shall provide its timely and best efforts to cooperate with GSFA and
Manufacturer during the Product manufacturing process. Reasonable and timely cooperation includes, without
limitation, Customer’s providing timely information in response to any requests from Manufacturer or GSFA and the
participation of Customer’s authorized representatives in traveling to Manufacturer’s facility for inspections and
approval of the Product, including a final approval before the Product leaves Manufacturer’s facility.

11. Representations and Warranties. Customer hereby represents and warrants to GSFA as of the Executed Date
that the execution of the Agreement and the purchase of the Product(s) and performance of the other obligations
of Customer under the Agreement have been approved by Customer in accordance with applicable general laws
and, as applicable, Customer’s charter, ordinances, purchasing policies, and other governing documents, and
executed by the appropriate Customer employees, officials, and/or representatives, and funding for Customer’s
performance of its obligations under the Agreement has been duly budgeted and appropriated by Customer.

12. Standard Warranty. All applicable Manufacturer warranties are contained in the Product Warranties. Any
additional warranties must be expressly approved in a writing signed by GSFA, and Customer acknowledges and
agrees that Manufacturer will not be liable for any such additional warranties.

a. Disclaimer. OTHER THAN AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THE AGREEMENT, GSFA, ITS AFFILIATES, AND THEIR 
RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, SHAREHOLDERS, AGENTS, OR REPRESENTATIVES, DO NOT MAKE 
ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE PRODUCT (WHETHER RELATING TO THE CONDITION 
OR QUALITY OF THE PRODUCT, OR OTHERWISE) PROVIDED HEREUNDER OR OTHERWISE REGARDING THE 
AGREEMENT (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, WITH RESPECT TO ANY APPLICABLE DEALER PREPARATION), 
WHETHER ORAL OR WRITTEN, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY. WITHOUT LIMITING THE FOREGOING, ANY 
IMPLIED WARRANTY OR CONDITION OF MERCHANTABILITY, THE IMPLIED WARRANTY AGAINST INFRINGEMENT, THE 

12-13



IMPLIED WARRANTY OR CONDITION OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE ARE EXPRESSLY EXCLUDED AND DISCLAIMED. 
STATEMENTS MADE BY SALES CONSULTANTS OR IN PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS DO NOT CONSTITUTE WARRANTIES. 

b. Exclusions of Incidental and Consequential Damages. In no event shall GSFA be liable for consequential,
incidental, or punitive damages incurred by Customer in connection with any matter arising out of or relating to the 
Agreement, or the breach thereof, even if GSFA has been advised of the possibility of such damages, and regardless 
of whether such damages arise out of breach of warranty, the Agreement, indemnity, whether resulting from non-
delivery or from GSFA’s own negligence, or otherwise, except and solely to the extent such damages arise from the 
gross negligence or willful misconduct of GSFA. 

13. Default. The occurrence of one or more of the following events (each, an “Event of Default”) shall constitute a
default under the Agreement: (a) Customer’s failure to pay any amounts due or to perform any of its obligations
under the Agreement; (b) GSFA’s failure to perform any of its obligations under the Agreement; (c) either Party
becoming insolvent or becoming subject to bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings; (d) any representation made by
either Party under the Agreement which is false in any material respect; (e) any action by Customer to dissolve,
merge, consolidate or transfer a substantial portion of its property to another entity during the term of the
Agreement; (f) any other material breach of the terms of the Agreement by a Party; or (g) a default or breach by
Customer under any other agreement with GSFA or its affiliates.

14. Indemnification of GSFA. Customer shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless GSFA, its agents, servants,
successors and assigns from and against all losses, damages, injuries, claims, demands and expenses, including
attorneys’ fees and other legal expenses, of whatever nature (“Damages”), to the extent Damages arise out of or in
connection with: (i) Customer’s breach of the Agreement, or (ii) Customer’s use, storage, or operation of the Product 
following delivery, regardless of where, how, and by whom operated (excluding any negligent operation by GSFA).
The indemnification and assumptions of liability and obligation herein provided shall continue in full force and effect
notwithstanding the termination of the Agreement, whether by expiration of time, by operation of law or otherwise.
This provision is not intended to and shall not constitute the exclusive remedy of the Parties under the Agreement;
the Parties may seek indemnity from one another under other legal principles, whether based in equity or law, so
long as they do not nullify or cancel the effects of this paragraph.

15. Force Majeure. GSFA shall not be responsible nor deemed to be in default of any provision of the Agreement on
account of delays in performance due to causes which are beyond GSFA’s or Manufacturer’s control and which make 
GSFA’s performance impracticable, including but not limited to wars, insurrections, strikes or labor unrest, riots,
fires, storms, floods, other acts of nature, explosions, earthquakes, accidents, any act of federal, state or local
government, failure or delays in transportation, inability to obtain necessary labor, supplies or manufacturing
facilities, supply chain issues, allocation regulations or orders affecting materials, equipment, facilities or completed
products, failure to obtain any required license or certificates, acts of God or the public enemy or terrorism, failure
of transportation, disease, pandemics or epidemics, quarantine restrictions, failure of vendors (due to causes similar 
to those within the scope of this clause) to perform their agreements or labor troubles causing cessation, slowdown,
or interruption of work.

16. Notice. Any notices, requests, consents, claims, demands, waivers and other communications required or
permitted to be given hereunder must be given in writing at the address of each Party set forth below, or to such
other address as either Party may substitute by written notice to the other in accordance with this Section 16, by
one of the following methods: hand delivery; registered, express, or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage 
prepaid; or nationally recognized private express courier.  All such communications will be deemed to have been
given: (i) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day after the
date mailed, by registered, express or certified mail; or (iii) when delivered by the addressee if sent by a nationally
recognized private express courier.

12-14



GSFA:  CUSTOMER: 
Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc. To the address listed in the Product Proposal 
7400 Reese Road  
Sacramento, CA 95828 

17. Contradictions. In the event of a conflict between the Agreement and any Change Order, or between Change
Orders, the terms of the latest executed Change Order shall control.

18. Manufacturer’s Statement of Origin. It is agreed that the manufacturer’s statement of origin (“MSO”) for the
Product covered by the Agreement, if applicable, shall be retained and remain in the possession of GSFA per
California Department of Vehicles (DMV) directives. Notwithstanding the foregoing, GSFA shall provide Customer
with the original MSO if the Customer is self-registering, and Customer shall comply with all good-faith Process of
Duty and other DMV requirements applicable to the Product and retain its own MSO.

19. Assignment. The relationship of the Parties established under the Agreement is that of independent contractors
and neither Party is a partner, employee, agent, or joint venturer of or with the other. Neither Party may assign its
rights and obligations under the Agreement unless it has obtained the prior written approval of the other Party.

20. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Disputes. Without regard to any conflict of laws provisions, the Agreement is to be
governed by and under the laws of the state of California. Prior to taking any legal action that may and/or can arise
out of the Agreement, the Parties shall first attempt mediation with an agreed upon mediator. If the Parties cannot
agree upon a mediator within thirty (30) calendar days of the submission of written notice of a dispute in accordance 
with Section 16 hereof, if any disputed matter remain unresolved within thirty (30) calendar days of the
commencement of discussions, or if any party refuses to meet, then either party may submit any remaining disputes
concerning and/or claim regarding the Agreement and/or the terms and conditions herein to the Superior Court,
County of Sacramento (and the parties expressly consent to exclusive personal jurisdiction and venue before such
court).

21. Entire Agreement; Amendments. The Agreement, including the Product Proposal, its exhibits and all valid Change 
Orders, is the exclusive agreement between the Parties regarding the subject matter contained herein and therein.
No change in, modification of, or revision of the Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by duly
authorized representatives of both Parties with authority to sign such amendments to the Agreement.

END OF STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

12-15



Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA 95959 

(530) 265-4431  FAX (530) 265-4438
nccfire@nccfire.com ● www.nccfire.com

To:    Board of Directors  

From:      Fleet and facilities Supervisor Greene through Fire Chief Robitaille 

Date     July 17, 2023 

Re:     Sale of Police Interceptors 

Background: 

Staff is recommending we surplus two staff vehicles, 2017 Ford Interceptor and 2018 Ford Interceptor. These 
were utilized as peace officer vehicles and are no longer needed with their retirement.  

Recommendation: 

The district declares the following vehicles surplus, accepts the offer from Nevada City Police Department, and 
authorizes Chief Robitaille or designee to sign the necessary documents for the sale:  

• Unit 2017-118, 2017 Ford Interceptor, VIN # 1FM5K8AR6HGB72804 for $18,000.00
• Unit 2018-115, 2018 Ford Interceptor, VIN # 1FMK5K8AR7JGA20911 for $20,000.00

Motion Requested: 

Declare unit 2017-118 and 2018-115 surplus, accept the offer from Nevada City, and authorize Fire Chief 
Robitaille or designee to sign the necessary documents for the sale of the two mentioned units.  

Fiscal Implications: 

The district would receive revenue in the amount of $38,000.00. This will be placed in Fund 758 for a future 
vehicle purchase. 

13-1

mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com
http://www.nccfire.com/


Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA 95959 

(530) 265-4431  FAX (530) 265-4438 
nccfire@nccfire.com ● www.nccfire.com 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Fleet and Facilities Supervisor Greene Fleet through Fire Chief Robitaille 

Date: July 17, 2023 

Re: Water Tender Purchase 

Background: 

Ophir Hill Fire District owns a 2000 International 7400 automatic transmission two axle Water Tender with a 
2000-gallon tank that is currently out of service due to a motor issue. It has been at a repair shop and needs 
additional repairs that District Staff has the knowledge and experience to repair the motor for the water 
tender to be placed in service and utilized.  

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends purchasing the water tender from Ophir Hill Fire District as the repair can be done in-
house to give the district an additional water tender.   

Fiscal Implications: 

Staff is currently working on negotiations; the cost will be no more than $28,000.00. 

14-1

mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com
http://www.nccfire.com/


Water Tender 52

14-2



15-1



15-2



15-3



15-4



15-5



15-6



15-7



15-8



15-9



15-10



15-11



15-12



15-13



15-14



15-15



15-16



OFFICIAL ELECTION BALLOT ATTACHED 

This is an official election packet that contains items that require ACTION by your 

Agency’s governing body for the selection of up to three (3) candidates to the 

SDRMA Board of Directors. 

ELECTION PACKET ENCLOSURES 

 Election Ballot Instructions

 Official Election Ballot (Action Required)

 Candidate’s Statements of Qualifications (4)

2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS ELECTION

16-1



SDRMA’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ELECTION BALLOT INSTRUCTIONS 

Notification of nominations for three (3) seats on the Special District Risk Management Authority’s 
(SDRMA’s) Board of Directors was mailed to the membership in January 2023.   

On May 11, 2023, SDRMA’s Election Committee reviewed the nomination documents submitted by the 
candidates in accordance with SDRMA’s Policy No. 2022-06 Establishing Guidelines for Director 
Elections. The Election Committee confirmed that (4) candidates met the qualification requirements, 
and those names are included on the Official Election Ballot.  

The Official Election Ballot along with a Statement of Qualifications as submitted by each candidate is 
posted to the SDRMA MemberPlus portal along with these instructions. Election instructions are as 
follows: 

1. The Official Election Ballot must be used to ensure the integrity of the balloting process.

2. Print a copy of this ballot, then select up to three (3) candidates. Your agency’s governing body
must approve the Official Election Ballot at a public meeting. Ballots containing more than four
(4) candidate selections will be considered invalid and not counted.

3. The signed Official Election Ballot MUST be sealed and received by mail or hand delivery at
SDRMA’s office on or before 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, August 8, 2023 to the address below. Faxes or
electronic transmissions are NOT acceptable. 

Special District Risk Management Authority 
Election Committee 
1112 “I” Street, Suite 300 
Sacramento, California 95814 

4. The four-year terms for newly elected Directors will begin on January 1, 2024, and terminate on
December 31, 2027.

5. Important balloting and election dates are:

• August 8, 2023: Deadline for members to return the signed Official Election Ballot.

• August 9-11, 2023: Ballots are opened and counted.

• August 10-11, 2023: Election results are announced, and candidates notified.

• November 1-2, 2023: Newly elected Directors are invited to attend SDRMA board meeting
(Sacramento).

• January 2024: Newly elected Directors are seated, and Board officer elections are held.

Please do not hesitate to contact SDRMA’s Management Analyst Candice Richardson at 
crichardson@sdrma.org or 800-537-7790 if you have any questions regarding the election and balloting 
process. 

16-2

mailto:crichardson@sdrma.org


OFFICIAL 2023 ELECTION BALLOT  
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

VOTE FOR ONLY THREE (3) CANDIDATES 

Mark each selection directly onto the ballot, voting for no more than three (3) candidates. Each 
candidate may receive only one (1) vote per ballot. A ballot received with more than three (3) 
candidates selected will be considered invalid and not counted. All ballots must be sealed and 
received by mail or hand delivery at SDRMA on or before 4:30 p.m., Tuesday August 8, 2023. 
Faxes or electronic transmissions are NOT acceptable. 

ROBERT SWAN (INCUMBENT) 
Director, Groveland Community Services District 

ACQUANETTA WARREN 
Vice Chair, Local Agency Formation Commission for San Bernardino County 

JESSE CLAYPOOL (INCUMBENT) 
Board Chair, Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District 

SANDY SEIFERT-RAFFELSON (INCUMBENT) 
General Manager, Herlong Public Utility District 

ADOPTED this ____ day of _____________, 2023 by the: 

 ____________________________________________________________________________ 

at a public meeting by the following votes:  

AYES: ___________ 

NOES: ______________________ 

ABSTAIN: ______________________ 

ABSENT: ______________________ 

ATTEST: APPROVED: 

_______________________________              ___________________________________ 

16-3



16-4



16-5



16-6



16-7



16-8



16-9



16-10



16-11



17-1



17-2



17-3



CHIEFS
MONTHLY
REPORT

N E V A D A  C O U N T Y
C O N S O L I D A T E D

F I R E  D I S T R I C T

P R E P A R E D  B Y :

Fire Chief Jason Robitaille
Division Chief Patrick Sullivan
Fire Marshal Patrick Mason 

July 20, 2023
Regular Board Meeting 



Nevada County finalized MOU for gap funding to staff
Rough & Ready Fire Station #59. 

NCC Fire and PVFD staff orientation trainings - Rough &
Ready Station #59

Nevada County Ad Hoc Committee Meeting (Robitaille)

Economic Resource Council Meeting  (Robitaille)

OAC Training with Chief Good (Robitaille)

Sierra College Presidents Lucheon (Robitaille)

Outdoor Visitors Safety Fund Round 2  Meeting (Robitaille)

LAFCo (Robitaille)

Nevada Irrigation District  (Robitaille)

Nevada County Chiefs Meeting (Robitaille/Sullivan)

Granite Construction (Robitaille/Sullivan)

District Battalion Chiefs Meeting  (Robitaille/Sullivan)

Yuba River Cohorts Meeting (Sullivan) 

Law Enforcement Fire Council Meeting  (Sullivan)

Nevada County Animal Control MOU (Sullivan)

Hansen Brothers 70th Year Celebration Lunch (Sullivan)

Nevada City Police- Coffee With A Cop (Sullivan)

Nevada County Evacuation Study Kick-Off Meeting

(Sullivan)

 ADMINISTRATION

 MEETINGS

JUNE
HIGHLIGHTS

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED



9:08 minutes average travel time for first due units
12 Vehicle Accidents
4 Swift Water Rescues
2 Technical Rope Rescues

SUPPRESSION

307 CALLS FOR SERVICE

JUNE
MONTHLY STATISTICS

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED



Attended the South County Area MAC / District III Townhall meeting.

Assisted OES with interviews for temporary DSI positions.

Captain Tellam and I attended the Sacramento – Sierra Arson Task Force meeting.

Witnessed the final fire alarm test at Nevada Union High School for the remodel of the
band and choir rooms.

Met with the OES team to discuss and develop a five-year strategic plan for the Defensible
Space Inspection program.

I investigated a residential structure fire on George Way – Fire originated under the back
deck, spread up the exterior wall and into the attic. The cause is undetermined. This
incident took place at 1:30 am, all occupants made it out safely. Suppression crews made
an incredible stop which saved a large amount of personal property.

Captain Tellam investigated a residential structure fire on Raccoon Mountain Road. This
house was a total loss and the cause was undetermined. 

Final inspection at the 49 Self Storage for temporary occupancy of the bottom five
buildings was completed.

Captain Tellam and I met with multiple property owners to walk through their properties
and discuss defensible space. Letters of clearance were provided for insurance purposes.

Captain Tellam and I inspected multiple cannabis gardens for Operational Permits.

Captain Tellam is making great progress with his training in the Department of Fire
Prevention. He will be transitioning to the Tuesday – Friday work schedule in July.

Meetings:

Comments:

JUNE
fire Prevention Report

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED



18. 

Closed Session 
Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation: Board Secretary 

18-1



19. 
Closed Session 
Negotiations 

19-1


	1. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes : 6/7/2023
	2. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: 6/15/2023
	3. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: 6/29/2023
	4. Fund Balances, Check History & Credit Card History Report
	5. R23-17: CAL OES 130 Update
	6. R23-18: Authroized Benefit for Misc. Non- Represented Employees
	7. MOU for Joint Staffing of Station 59
	8. Gap Funding Letter
	9. R23-19: Updating Authorized Personnel
	10. Legal Services Proposal
	11. 23-20: 23/24 District Wage and Compensation Schedule
	12. R23-21: Agreement with Golden State Apparatus for Pierce Pumper
	13. Staff Report to Surplus, Accept Offer and Sign Documents to Sell 2 Staff Vehicles
	14. Water Tender Purchase from Ophir Hill Fire
	15. Agreement with Suburban Propane
	16. SDRMA Election Ballot
	17. Correspondence
	Chiefs Monthly Report
	18. Closed Session- Evaluation
	19. Closed Session- Negotiations

	Cal OES ID No: 
	Title of Authorized Agent 1: Fire Chief
	Title of Authorized Agent 2: Division Chief
	Title of Authorized Agent 3: Administrative Services Manager
	Name of Applicant: Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Off
	disaster/grant number(s): 
	Day Passed: 20
	Month Passed: July
	Last 2 digits of Year Passed: 23
	Name and Title of Governing Body Representative: Keith Grueneberg, President
	Name and Title of Governing Body Representative_2: Patricia Nelson, Vice President
	Name and Title of Governing Body Representative_3: Barry Dorland, Director
	Name of Certifier: Tricia Bush
	Governing Body: Board of Directors
	Day Certified: 20
	Month Certified: July
	Last 2 digits of Year Certified: 2023
	Title of Certifier: Secretary of th Board
	Return to Agenda: 


